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Characteristics of the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") has been positioned as a market
designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the

securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Director(s)”) of Pegasus
Entertainment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company.

The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHmE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”), | am pleased to present you the Group’s first annual results
after listing on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Year 2012 is a milestone year for the Group. Our successful listing on 31
October 2012 has provided us a strong platform for further development
and growth. Net proceeds of approximately HK$73.5 million from listing
were raised and would be utilised for production of nine films and
participating in post-production business.
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Review

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group achieved satisfactory
performance. During the year under review, the Group accomplished
excellent results with a record high revenue of approximately HK$192.6
million, representing a growth of approximately 40.4% over that for
the year ended 30 June 2012; gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$65.3 million,

that for the year ended 30 June 2012. Increased revenue and gross profit

representing a growth of approximately 16.3% over

was primarily attributable to the prosperous film market in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). In terms of geographical contribution,
revenue from the PRC market increased 25.8% from HK$102.6 million in
2012 to HK$129.1 million in 2013, showing that the significance of the
PRC as our major market further increased.

In the first half of 2013, the film market in the PRC continued its strong
growing momentum and the gross box office receipts increased by 36.2%
to RMB11.0 billion as compared with the corresponding period in 2012.
The PRC has also become the second largest film market in the world
with great emphasis by the PRC Government on cultural industry, which
the film industry belongs to. According to the “Twelfth Five-Year Plan” of
the PRC Government, the cultural industry has been listed as a strategic
industry of the PRC. Cultural industrial production value is aimed at
accounting for 5.0% of the gross domestic product from the current 2.5%
by 2015. Further, it aims to achieve an annual growth rate for the cultural
industry of 15.0% by 2015.

With such favorable factors, we endeavored to capture all potential
opportunities in the PRC film industry, our major market, and actively
executed our business plan. During the year under review, we have

released three films, namely “Love is... Pyjamas” (55 AZ07KAR), “Hotel
Deluxe” (B2/AJE) and “Saving General Yang” (25X #5), bringing

substantial revenue of HK$19.3 million, HK$39.2 million and HK$123.6
million respectively to the Group. In addition, the post-production of our
3-D thriller film, “Baby Blues” (#2%), has been finished and it will be
released in October 2013.

On the other hand, due to our established brand name in the PRC film
market together with our insight in the comedy genre, the Group has
successfully acquired the theatrical distribution right and arranged the
showing in Hong Kong and Macau for “Lost in Thailand” (ABE®Z
Z&M), a wonderful comedy, which has grossed box office receipts over
RMB1.2 billion in the PRC, setting the highest record of the PRC box
office receipts by a Chinese language film. Acquiring distribution rights of
popular films provides the Group higher exposure in the PRC film market
as well as recognition of its ability of introducing famous film to the Hong
Kong and Macau market as a branded entertainment company.
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Chairman’s Statement
F RS

Outlook

Central to our ability to deliver sustainable growth is improving the way
we innovate with close eyes at the market needs. The Group would
diversify the film genres so to satisfy different market needs. In particular,
eyeing at the PRC as our major market, the Group will continue to
gravitate towards the PRC audience preference so as to grasp the growth
opportunities in this market. Apart from the well-known comedy series,
the Group will keep on producing romance and action films in the
following financial years. Furthermore, we would take a step forward and
explore the comics and animations market in the PRC through acquisition
of a business with well-developed and rich comics database. We are
confident in seizing the comics reproduction market and hence generate
sustainable returns for our shareholders.

While we spare no effort in the development of film production business,
the Group plans to invest and develop post-production business in order
to achieve the economies of scales as well as produce a synergy effect.
Besides setting up our own post-production team, we will also consider
acquiring or cooperating with existing post-production companies to
complete an integrated production value chain.

Over the years, the Group’s business in the PRC market has been mature.
With fully utilising the advantages brought by the Mainland and Hong
Kong Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement, the Group has made
steady progress in developing our business in the PRC film market.
Nevertheless, overseas markets (excluding Hong Kong, Macau and South
East Asia) took up 10.1% (2012: 2.0%) of the Group’s total revenue
during the year under review, demonstrating an enormous potential of its
market growth. Taking the PRC market as a foundation, the Group has
attached great importance to expand our business to overseas market
stage by stage, in order to strengthen the distribution network and
increase the Group's penetration in the overseas market to strive for a
better accomplishment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIREaTam M T

Business Review

We are principally engaged in the production and distribution of films
in Hong Kong, the PRC and South East Asia through our established
distribution channels. We have been producing films in Chinese language
with the PRC as our major market.

During the year under review, the principal business activities of the Group
comprised (a) production of films; (b) distribution and licensing of our
films to regions including Taiwan, Japan, the United States of America
and Europe in addition to our major markets of Hong Kong, the PRC
and South East Asia; (c) offering product placement and sponsorship
opportunities in our films to derive advertising income; and (d) distribution
of films and television (“TV") series in the film library owned by our
controlling shareholders (the “Personal Library”). The Group’s business
model and the principal business activities remained as those disclosed in
the prospectus of the Company dated 9 October 2012 (the “Prospectus”)

during the year under review.
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During the year under review, we generated revenue by licensing films we
produced to co-producers in the PRC and film distributors and licencees in
Hong Kong and overseas. We also derived advertising income by offering
product placement and sponsorship opportunities in our films. In addition,
we recognised income from commission received for distributing films and
TV series in the Personal Library.

The Group released three films, namely “Love is... Pyjamas” (55 A213K
fg), “Hotel Deluxe” (B £/H)E) and “Saving General Yang” (BZUHX

#), during the year ended 30 June 2013 and two films, namely “Magic
To Win” (F/DEEZX) and “All's Well End’'s Well 2012" (\E#.E), during
the corresponding year 2012. During the year under review, the Group
invested in an international film to be produced for worldwide theatrical
distribution and several PRC TV drama and animations programme
produced for distribution and broadcasting in the PRC and Hong Kong. As
disclosed in the Prospectus, due to the limited number of films distributed
by the Group, the scale, schedule of release and the result of one film
could have significant impact on the Group’s results. Given the distinctive
business model of the Group, the Group’s quarterly and interim financial
results may not be indicative of the Group’s financial results of a full year
and the Group’s financial performance would fluctuate from period to
period.

The financial position and liquidity of the Group remain solid and healthy
and there is no material adverse change in the operations of the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review
Revenue

Revenue and gross profit of the Group were approximately HK$192.6
million and HK$65.3 million respectively for the year ended 30 June 2013,
representing increases of approximately HK$55.5 million or 40.4% and
HK$9.1 million or 16.3% respectively compared to the previous financial
year. This was mainly due to the impressive revenue contributed by
our first large-scale film “Saving General Yang” (FEXUHZ ), which is
directed by Ronny Yu, a renowned Hollywood film director, accounted for
approximately 64.2% of the total revenue for the year under review. Gross
profit margin for the year ended 30 June 2013 was approximately 33.9%,
which showed a slight decrease from that of approximately 40.9% for
the previous financial year. This was mainly due to lower profit margin of
large-scale film compared to general scale film of the Group.

Other Income and Gain

Other income and gain was approximately HK$1.0 million for the year
ended 30 June 2013, representing a decrease of approximately HK$1.6
million or 62.4% compared to the previous financial year. This is mainly
due to the net exchange gain of approximately HK$1.2 million recorded
in the previous year for the appreciation of Renminbi (“RMB") against
HK$ when we settled the film production expenses incurred during
the shooting of “Saving General Yang” (BZUBX ) in the PRC at the
prevailing transaction rate, whilst no such gain was recognised for the

10
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year ended 30 June 2013. In addition, no income from making-of was
recorded during the year under review as the Group focused on its
core business of film production whilst the Group recorded income of
approximately HK$0.7 million from artiste management.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately HK$5.6
million or 34.6% from approximately HK$16.2 million for the year ended
30 June 2012 to approximately HK$21.8 million for the year ended 30
June 2013. This was mainly because the number of films released by the
Group recorded a year-on-year increase, leading to additional costs on
advertising and promotion events.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$9.0 million or
113.0% from approximately HK$8.0 million for the year ended 30 June
2012 to approximately HK$17.0 million for the year ended 30 June
2013. This was mainly due to the increase of the total staff costs by
approximately HK$4.7 million as a result of (a) a change of arrangement to
the Directors’ remuneration structure in respect of the Listing, as disclosed
in the Prospectus; and (b) the average number of employees increasing
from 18 for the year ended 30 June 2012 to 27 for the year ended 30
June 2013. Another apparent increase of expenses was mainly due to the
expansion of company scale and corporate image development, including
approximately HK$3.9 million in relation to corporate promotion and
marketing expenses, other professional fees paid to compliance adviser,

lawyers and other professional parties for providing professional services
since the Listing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B i RS

Other Expenses

During the year under review, other expenses represented the professional
fees and expenses directly relating to the Listing.

Income Tax Expense

The income tax expense of the Group during the year ended 30 June
2013 amounted to approximately HK$4.5 million (2012: HK$5.5 million)
at the effective tax rate of 19.0% (2012: 20.8%). The effective tax rate
during the year under review was mainly attributed by the Hong Kong
Profits Tax rate at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit of the Group
for the year under review adjusted by the non-tax-deductible nature of
certain expenses directly relating to the Listing and overprovision of Hong
Kong Profits Tax provided in prior years.

Profit for the Year under Review

The Group’s profit and total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2013 amounted to
approximately HK$19.1 million (2012: HK$21.0 million). The decrease
of profit for the year under review compared to the previous year
was primarily a result of the increase in selling and distribution and
administrative expenses outweighed the increase in gross profit as
aforementioned.

Outlook

During the year under review, the Group has continued to carry out its
business plan as disclosed in the Prospectus. The PRC continues to be
our major market and co-production arrangement remains an expedient
way for us to gain access to the PRC film market. According to The
State Administration of Radio Film and Television (BIXR/EEEF BG4
/@) ("SARFT"), there was a notable annual growth of the PRC total box
office receipts of 30.5% during the year of 2012. Furthermore, the PRC
total box office receipts recorded an increase from RMB8.1 billion in the
first half of 2012 to RMB11.0 billion in the first half of 2013, representing
a remarkable period-to-period growth of 36.2%. Due to the continued
growth of the PRC film industry as well as the encouragement of the
PRC Government to the film industry from its issuance of guidelines on
promoting the development of the film industry and implementation of
the Mainland and Hong Kong Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement,
we have identified the PRC as the pivotal market for the Group’s future
development. We are confident that the outlook for the PRC film industry
to be positive and encouraging to industry participants.
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Having established a presence in the PRC film market, we have been well
positioned as a producer of quality co-productions. In order to capture
the prospects and the rapid development of the PRC film market, we
will keep expanding our production capacities and the range of films
in various genres to be produced. Apart from our well-known comedy
(3822), has finished the post-
production and secured cinema circuits’ screening schedules. It is expected

series, our 3-D thriller film, “Baby Blues”
to be released and screened in both Hong Kong and the PRC in October
2013. In addition, the commencement of the shooting of the romance
film has been rescheduled to October 2013 and is expected to be released
in the following financial year mainly due to a change of the leading cast’s
availability. Three more films are awaiting approvals for the scripts and
production will start and to be released in the following financial year.

On the other hand, digitalisation of films has become a trend whilst digital
prints maintains quality and effective costing. With the PRC as our major
market, which has the second largest number of digital screens globally,
the Group intends to invest in such equipment and in recruiting more staff
to participate in the post-production stage as mentioned in the Prospectus
in the following financial year. We may also consider expanding such
business through acquisition or cooperation with other existing post-
production companies.

In view of an immense demand for comics and animations in the PRC,
reflected in the value of domestic animation production reaching RMB75.0
billion in 2012, the Group has taken an important step in expanding our
film related business activities during the year under review. The comics
and animation industry has also been listed as one of the key industries
in the “Twelfth Five-Year Plan”.

13 August 2013, the Group has entered into an acquisition agreement

As disclosed in our announcement on

with a vendor to acquire Jade Dynasty Holdings Limited, which and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in comics publication and owns the
intellectual property right of a database of comics stories and comics
heroes, for 40% of its entire issued share capital. This acquisition would
be an excellent opportunity for the Group to diversify our business and
also brings further business opportunity in the PRC to the Group with the
entitlement to a first right of refusal to use the intellectual property rights
upon completion of transaction, for the comics reproduction as movies,
television shows, as well as for the development into online games and
mobile games.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to focus on its core business and
utilise our available resources to produce the best films in order to capture
the demand for quality film in the PRC film market. Apart from this, the
Group will also continue to explore business opportunities associated
with its core business so to strengthen its revenue base and maximise the
return to the shareholders and the value of the Company.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately HK$60.0 million (30 June 2012: HK$15.9 million), which
are denominated mainly in HK$, United States Dollar (“US$") and RMB.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group did not have any interest-bearing loans
and shareholders’ loans (2012: interest-bearing loans and shareholders’
loans of approximately HK$2.0 million and HK$50.0 million respectively).
The gearing ratio, representing the ratio of the total interest-bearing loans
and shareholders’ loans over the total equity, was approximately 1.3 as at
30 June 2012.

The Group had unutilised credit facilities totaling HK$14.0 million
and HK$30.0 million at 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2013 respectively.
During the year under review, the Group has released the credit facilities
amounted to HK$14.0 million secured by personal guarantees executed
by certain Directors and a charge over leasehold land and buildings of a
related company as disclosed in the Prospectus. The Group has maintained
a new general banking facility amounted to HK$30.0 million for flexibility.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had total non-current assets of
approximately HK$31.9 million (30 June 2012: HK$30.9 million), net
current assets of approximately HK$162.0 million (30 June 2012: HK$10.2
million) and net assets of HK$193.9 million (30 June 2012: HK$41.1
million). The current ratio of the Group, representing the ratio of current
assets over current liabilities, was approximately 6.8 as at 30 June 2013
(30 June 2012: 1.1).

During the year under review, the Group funds its liquidity by the net
proceeds from the Listing and resources generated internally. The Group’s
financial resources are sufficient to support its business and operations.
The Group would also consider other financing activities when appropriate
business opportunities arise under favorable market conditions.

In August 2013, the Group has completed on issuance of 70,000,000 new
shares under placing at the price of HK$0.9 per share. The gross proceeds
and net proceeds from the placing are approximately HK$63.0 million and
HK$61.3 million respectively which is used for financing the acquisition of
the comics business aforementioned.
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Employee Information

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had 27 employees (30 June 2012: 24).
Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration, amounted to approximately
HK$9.2 million, including script writing fee paid to a Director for the year
ended 30 June 2013 (2012: HK$7.1 million, including script writing fee
and actor and executive producer fee paid to certain Directors).

The Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration
and benefits package to all its employees. In addition, the Group has
adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. The Group has also adopted other
employee benefit including a provident fund scheme for its employees in
Hong Kong, as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, and has participated in employee pension schemes organised
and governed by the relevant local governments for its employees in the
PRC.

Charge on Assets
As at 30 June 2012, the Group did not pledge any assets of the Group.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s bank deposits of HK$30.0 million were
pledged to secure a general banking facility of HK$30.0 million available
to the Group.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s business operations were conducted mainly in Hong Kong
with transactions principally denominated in HK$, US$ and RMB. The
monetary assets and liabilities are denominated mainly in HK$, US$ and
RMB. Apart from HK$, which is pegged to US$, any significant exchange
rate fluctuations of HK$ against RMB may have a financial impact to the
Group. During the year under review, there was no significant fluctuation
in the exchange rates of these currencies.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit
to any financial instruments to hedge its statement of financial position
exposure during the year ended 30 June 2013.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2012 and 2013, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Comparison between Business Plan and Actual
Business Progress

The following is a comparison between the Group’s business plan as set out
in the Prospectus and the actual business progress for the year ended 30 June
2013.

Business plan for the year ended 30 June 2013
as stated in the Prospectus

BREEMEE201356 8308 L FENESHE

Expansion of our film production business:

MERBFINEZEUEET -

We will explore more territories and channels for distributing and licensing
our films.

A AR MEZONETRETREAFAIRAE S EANRE

We intend to release five films, one being a comedy film, namely “Love

. Pyjamas” (55 AZZKAR), one being a large-scale period action film,
namely "Saving General Yang” (FBRU15Z#5), one being a 3-D thriller film,
namely “Baby Blues” (#fR), one being a family-oriented comedy film
to be released during the Chinese New Year and one being a romance
film, according to the prevailing market trends and our observation on
audiences’ preference.

SRR EEREERBOREDN
_—

16 Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012/13

EBRTHREREBERNLER

AT RABRERMEAEBEEBIEEGE2
BILFEEREBERNLLE -

01356H30

Actual business progress up to 30 June 2013

B E201356 A30ENBREKER

The Group increased its territory of customers of the
existing distributing and licensing platform, these new
customers are including a number of customers located in
European countries and Latin America.

AEBEMERAHETRETRERFAITFANEPES
ZENEP BN RENER RN T EMOREEP -

Up to 30 June 2013, the Group has released three films,
namely “Love is... Pyjamas” (55 AZIZKAR), “Hotel Deluxe”
(A &JEJE), a family-oriented comedy film released in the
Chinese New Year and “Saving General Yang” (X5
Z#%). The remaining two films, “Baby Blues” (;822), the
Chinese name of this film was formerly known as GEHR),
and a romance film originally scheduled to be released
during the year ended 30 June 2013 are expected to be
released during the year ending 30 June 2014. “Baby
Blues” (3822) is currently in pre-release promotion stage
and has been confirmed for release in October 2013 by
the co-producer in the PRC, whilst the commencement
of the shooting of the romance film has been postponed
to October 2013 mainly due to a change of the leading
cast’s availability.
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Use of Proceeds from the Listing

The business plan and planned use of proceeds from the Listing as
disclosed in the Prospectus were based on the best estimation of future
market conditions made by the Group at the time of preparing the
Prospectus, while the proceeds were applied in accordance with the actual
development of the market.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the net proceeds from the Listing
had been applied as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Total use of Actual use of
proceeds as proceeds during
described in the the year ended
Prospectus 30 June 2013
BZE2013F
BRERFR 6A30HLFE
FrERIE A FRSRERE
BB BERSH
HKS$'million HK$'million
BYEER BYEER
Expansion of film production business hEERUEER 58.4 16.6
Invest in equipment for post-production K E B BARERE 9.8 -
Staff recruitment BEET 2.8 0.5
General working capital —REEES 2.5 2.5
Total &t 73.5 19.6

The unutilised proceeds were deposited in the Group’s bank accounts
located in Hong Kong.
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The Directors will constantly evaluate the Group’s business objective
and will change or modify plans against the changing market condition
to ascertain the business growth of the Group. The Group intends to
release six films for the year ending 30 June 2014 under the business plan
as stated in the Prospectus. According to the current PRC film market
condition, the initial approval for the film production by SARFT has taken
much more time than expected which is mainly due to the significant
expansion of domestic films development in the PRC. The Directors had
evaluated the Group’s business plan and considered that there will be five
films to be released during the year ending 30 June 2014 of which one
film and four films will be released in the first and second half of the year
ending 30 June 2014 respectively. The Group will keep abreast of the
latest trends and development of the film industry and continue to provide
updates on the Group’s business plan.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors had considered that no modification
of the use of proceeds as described in the Prospectus was required.

EFHTHTEAEENEKER  YHEMAEHEE
HEWFTEURREENEBKIER - BREBRERAMMY
¥t a AEEFENEE2014F6 8308 LFE LR
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Pak Ming, aged 67, was appointed as a Director on 8 March
2012 and was redesignated as an executive Director and appointed as
the chairman of the Board on 5 October 2012. He is responsible for the
strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Wong is an artist and filmmaker
in Hong Kong, formed Cinema City Company Limited and Cinema City
(Film Production) Company Limited, both of which are film production
companies, in 1980s. In 1990, Mr. Wong founded Mandarin Films Limited.
Mr. Wong was an executive director of Cheung Wo International Holdings
Limited, formerly known as China Mandarin Holdings Limited (“Cheung
Wo") (Stock Code: 0009), shares of which is listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange from 21 August 2001 to 18 August 2009. Mr.
Wong has over 30 years of experience in the film industry for each of the
roles as executive producer, script writer and artist and over 25 years of
experience as film director. He has participated in more than 100 films
throughout his career. He has been the chairman of the Movie Producers
and Distribution Association since 1997. He was a member of the Hong
Kong Film Development Council from April 2011 to March 2013. Mr.
Wong is the father of Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina (“Ms. Alvina Wong")
and Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond (“Mr. Edmond Wong"), both executive
Directors of the Company.

Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina, aged 37, was appointed as a Director
on 15 March 2012 and was redesignated as an executive Director
on 5 October 2012. Ms. Alvina Wong is responsible for the sales and
distribution functions of the Group and has around 11 years of experience
in the film industry, including assessing market reception of proposed
films, providing promotional services for films and liaising with film
distributors and licencees. Ms. Alvina Wong was an executive director of
Cheung Wo from 1 September 2003 to 1 April 2009. Ms. Alvina Wong
graduated from the University of Toronto with a bachelor’s degree in
Arts in June 1998. Ms. Alvina Wong is the daughter of Mr. Wong Pak
Ming (“Mr. Wong”) and the sister of Mr. Edmond Wong, both executive
Directors of the Company.

Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond, aged 34, was appointed as a Director
on 15 March 2012 and was redesignated as an executive Director on
5 October 2012. Mr. Edmond Wong is responsible for overseeing film
production of our Group. He has around 9 years of experience in the film
industry as script writer and was an executive director of Cheung Wo
from 3 June 2008 to 13 February 2009. Mr. Edmond Wong graduated
from McMaster University in Canada with a bachelor’s degree in Arts in
June 2002. Mr. Edmond Wong is the son of Mr. Wong and the brother of
Ms. Alvina Wong, both executive Directors of the Company. Mr. Edmond
Wong is the spouse of Ms. Cheng Carmen, senior management of the
Company.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kam Tong, aged 44, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Lam graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Business
Management in 1991. Mr. Lam is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 14 years of experience
in professional auditing as well as extensive experience in the areas of
investor relations, mergers and acquisitions and offshore financing. Since
May 2012, he has been an executive director, company secretary and an
authorised representative of Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock
code: 1777), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lam was company secretary and qualified accountant of Greentown
China Holdings Limited (stock code: 3900), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from May 2006 to October 2008. Mr. Lam
was an executive director of China Aoyuan Property Group Limited (stock
code: 3883), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
from September 2009 to May 2012, and was company secretary of
such company from December 2008 to May 2012. Mr. Lam has been an
independent non-executive director of Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited (stock
code: 851), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
since November 2010.

Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk, aged 39, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Lo has over 13 years of
experience in business management in a private company which trades in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Tang is a member of
the Royal Institute of British Architects and a committee member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (FEIARECAHEE
##). Mr. Tang is a director of several private companies engaged in the
business including property investment and investment holding. Mr. Tang
was an independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of Cheung Wo from 1 September 2001 to 31 August 2003
and from 1 December 2005 to 29 May 2008 respectively.

Senior management

Mr. Chan Chi Ming, aged 38, is the chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Company responsible for assisting the Directors in
overseeing finance and accounting, internal control, corporate governance
and regulatory compliance. Mr. Chan joined the Group in December
2011. Mr. Chan graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist University with
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration (Accounting) in December
2000. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan has over 13 years of accounting and
auditing experience accumulated from working for various international
accounting firms and a main board listed company in Hong Kong.

Ms. Chan Yuen Yee, aged 52, is the administration manager responsible
for the overall administrative function and assisting in production contracts
management of the Group. Ms. Chan joined the Group in October 2009.
She obtained a diploma in Management Studies awarded jointly by Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and Hong Kong Management Association
in September 1997. Prior to joining the Group in 2009, she had over
15 years of working experience in administration management in a film
production and distribution company, where she was mainly responsible

for human resources management and office administration.

Ms. Cheng Carmen, aged 32, is the production manager responsible for
assisting in overseeing the overall production progress of the Group’s films.
Ms. Cheng joined the Group in April 2009. Ms. Cheng graduated from the
Curtin University of Technology, Western Australia with a bachelor’s degree in
Marketing and Public Relations in February 2004. She has over 4 years of film
production management experience accumulated from her engagement in the
Group, where she was mainly responsible for film production management
and assisting in controlling film production progress. Ms. Cheng is the spouse
of Mr. Edmond Wong.

Ms. Qian Gao Gao, aged 52, is the deputy general manager of Jt 5K
BEEAFGEYEARAT (“Beijing Pegasus”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, responsible for overseeing the operation of
Beijing Pegasus and assisting in all the Group’s business activities in the
PRC. Ms. Qian joined the Group in January 2012. Ms. Qian graduated
from Beijing Institute of Economy (AL R4EHEZFt) and obtained a degree
of Industrial Statistics under the Department of Industry and Economy
Administration (TE4CHEEE X TEHTEE) in September 1984. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Qian had over 29 years of experience in the film
industry including 8 years in the SARFT where she was mainly responsible
for reviewing the application for film production and participating in film
subsidisation works; and over 20 years in various film production and
distribution companies in the PRC, where she was mainly responsible for
assisting the parent company in Hong Kong on its investment in the PRC
domestic films and submitting application for film productions including
films under the co-production arrangement in the PRC, redevelopment
works for cinemas in the PRC and identifying film investors.
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Report of the Directors
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2013.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June 2013 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 53 to 119 of this annual report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2013 (2012: Nil).

Segment Information

Details of the segment information of the Group are set out in note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past four financial years since the Group established in
March 2009, as extracted from the combined and consolidated financial
statements in the Prospectus and this annual report respectively set out on
page 120 of this annual report.

Interests of the Compliance Adviser

As notified by the Company’s compliance adviser, Altus Capital Limited
(the "Compliance Adviser”), except for the compliance adviser agreement
entered into between the Company and the Compliance Adviser dated
5 October 2012 effective on 31 October 2012, the date of the Listing,
neither the Compliance Adviser nor its directors, employees or associates
had any interests in relation to the Company as at 30 June 2013 which
is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group

are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
Bank Borrowing

The Group did not have bank borrowings as at 30 June 2013.
Interest Capitalised

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year ended 30 June
2013.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year
ended 30 June 2013 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements.
Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 30 June 2013 are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity, respectively.
Distributable Reserves

As at 30 June 2013, the Company’'s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands, amounted to
HK$164,146,000 (2012: Nil).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 30 June 2013.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 30 June 2013, income received from the top
five customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 73.5% (2012:
85.5%) of the Group’s revenue. During the same period, revenue received
from the single largest customer accounted for approximately 49.4%
(2012: 35.1%) of the Group’s revenue.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the fees paid/payable to the top five
suppliers in aggregate constituted approximately 16.7% (2012: 45.4%)
of the Group’s total fees paid/payable to the suppliers. During the same
period, fees paid/payable to the largest supplier constituted approximately
4.7% (2012: 19.2%) of the Group’s total fees paid/payable to the
suppliers.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company
(who to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the share
capital of the Company) has any interest in any of the top five customers
and suppliers.

Emoluments Policy

The emoluments of the Directors is recommended by the remuneration
committee of the Company after considering the factors such as the
Company’s operating results, individual performance, salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and

employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and

experience of the individual employee.

The Company has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Details of the Scheme is set out in the following section
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report. The Group
has also adopted other employee benefit including a provident
fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong, as required under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, and has participated in
employee pension schemes organised and governed by the relevant local
governments for its employees in the PRC.

Details of the emolument of the Directors and five highest paid individuals

of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. The Scheme has been approved by the then
sole shareholder on 5 October 2012. No share options were granted,
exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Scheme during the year
ended 30 June 2013 and there were no outstanding share options under
the Scheme as at 30 June 2013.

Details of the Scheme are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Pak Ming (Chairman)
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kam Tong
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy of the Board
shall hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Mr. Wong, Ms.
Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong who were appointed by the Board
during the year, will retire at the annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation and shall
be eligible for re-election. Every Director, including those appointed for a
specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

By virtue of Article 84(1) of the Company's Articles of Association,
Mr. Lam Kam Tong will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the annual general
meeting.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of the Group
are disclosed in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 19 to 21 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Agreements

Each of Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong, being all the
executive Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 31 October 2012
renewable automatically until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other expiring at the end of
the initial term or any time thereafter. To demonstrate their commitment
towards the Group, each of the executive Directors has undertaken not to
resign or terminate their service contracts during the initial fixed term of
three years commencing from 31 October 2012, the date of the Listing.

Each of Mr. Lam Kam Tong, Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui
Terence, being all our independent non-executive Directors, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company on 5 October 2012. Each
letter of appointment is for an initial term commencing on the date of the
letter of appointment and shall continue thereafter subject to a maximum
of three years unless terminated by either party giving at least one month’s

notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is proposed to enter
into a service contract/letter of appointment with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries (other than contracts expiring or determinable by the
Group within one year without the payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation)).

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
all three independent non-executive Directors pursuant to the Rule 5.09

of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Details of Directors’ interest in contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business are set out in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report and note 33 “Related party disclosures” to the
consolidated financial statements.

Other than as disclosed above, there was no contract of significance to
which the Company or its subsidiaries, or its holding companies or any of
its fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting during or at the end of
the year ended 30 June 2013.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report of which certain Directors engaged in
film-related businesses, none of the Directors or the controlling
shareholders of the Company or their respective associates as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules has any interest in any business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group during the year ended 30
June 2013.

Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

On 5 October 2012, Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong, Mr. Edmond Wong
and Honour Grace Limited (“Honour Grace"”) (collectively referred as to
the “Controlling Shareholders”), have given an irrevocable non-compete
undertaking (the “Non-competition Undertaking”) in favour of the Group
pursuant to which each of them irrevocably, unconditionally, jointly and
severally undertaken, among other matters, not to, directly or indirectly,
carry on, invest in or be engaged in any business which would or might
compete with the business of the Group. Details of the Non-competition
Undertaking have been set out in the section headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The Non-competition Undertaking has become effective from 31 October
2012, the date of the Listing.

The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
Non-competition Undertaking from 31 October 2012, the date of the
Listing to the year ended 30 June 2013 and up to the date of this report.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and confirmed that
the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the Non-competition
Undertaking and the Non-competition Undertaking has been enforced
by the Company in accordance with its terms from 31 October 2012, the
date of the Listing to the date of this report.
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Contracts of Significance

Saved as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in The Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As at 30 June 2013, the interests of Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) and required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EXREWN

B b SCPTARER A SN - AN B o H A A P B 1 B B AR AR R
S EHEMMEARLBMETLEREL

HRERTHERNEA TR EEEEE
WIR « AEBR G RS R R A

Bl1) EXVED) MRk RABBR DT EEAREBESRBE
Bl SEXVER EB7 K85 EB AR FE AN G A 1A &) K Hib 32 BT /O 7 %
(BREREESF KSR EAGKESHEERRARS
BiER)  RAZHERARAIRESH RBEEAE3521&
FiFEECMaER  SEREAIZER M RBE5.461&
E5.676REMNGARAR KRB ERLT ¢

RAERBROREERD VTR

Percentage
of the Company'’s

Name of Director Nature of interest Number of shares  Position issued share capital

EARD RS BT

EEEB HmMtE ROBE =& e =R

Mr. Wong Interest in a controlled 300,000,000 (Note 1)  Long 75% (Note 2)
corporation

BRAE AR EE R 300,000,000 (FfizE1) W& 75% (Pfi7E2)

Note 1: These shares are registered in the name of Honour Grace, the entire issued share
capital of which is legally and beneficially owned as to 60% by Mr. Wong, 20%
by Ms. Alvina Wong and 20% by Mr. Edmond Wong. Under the SFO, Mr. Wong
is deemed to be interested in all the shares registered in the name of Honour

Grace.

Note 2: Subsequent to 30 June 2013, 70,000,000 new shares of the Company had been
placed on 6 August 2013 at HK$0.9 per share, therefore, the percentage of the
Company’s share capital held by Honour Grace was 63.83% as at the date of
this report. Further details of the placing arrangement have been set out in the

Company’s announcements dated 19 June 2013 and 6 August 2013.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

As at 30 June 2013, the interest of the persons, other than Directors or
chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,

or otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:
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LERANCITEE: Sy
RER AR EEME ROBE =& RAEABDL
Honour Grace Beneficial owner 300,000,000  Long 75% (Note 2)
R EmEA A 300,000,000 & 75% (FfizE2)
Ms. Zee Ven Chu Lydia (Note 1)  Interest in a controlled 300,000,000  Long 75% (Note 2)

corporation

R gzt (MEE1) NS AN

Note 1: Ms. Zee Ven Chu Lydia, spouse of Mr. Wong, is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in all the shares in which Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested.
Note 2: Subsequent to 30 June 2013, 70,000,000 new shares of the Company had been

placed on 6 August 2013 at HK$0.9 per share, therefore, the percentage of the
Company’s share capital held by Honour Grace was 63.83% as at the date of
this report. Further details of the placing arrangement have been set out in the

Company’s announcements dated 19 June 2013 and 6 August 2013.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2013, the Company had not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO to be disclosed to the Company, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Option Scheme” and
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations” above, at no time during the year ended 30 June 2013 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of
the Company or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any
of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or

any other body corporate.
Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 38 to 50 of this annual report.

Related Party Transactions

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year ended
30 June 2013 are set out in note 33 “Related party disclosures” to
the consolidated financial statements. Those related party transactions
constitute continuing connected transactions exempted from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group had entered into a
number of transactions with certain entities which had become connected
persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company upon
the Listing. Following the Listing, these transactions had continued in
the ordinary and usual course of business had constituted continuing
connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules, details of which are
set out below.

30 Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012/13

BARAD S E S AR

Br b [BERRMEET S R [EE RITHAH N AR R RHEAE
BEEERR G - HERND RESOER KR | EEHMKR
EHN REE2013F6A30B L FE R + A QA H A
Lip=pNG e Se S G )N T VR e S Gl E e = g d
RAREBFLITHARLFESSENHBEA (ERRAER
EWRA) AERBARRKEEMAEEE (TEREFH
REIE G B8 S AT ERB AR R RS EAMEAE
BERRMDKESFMETR -

>
M

Ny
B

B

HAO#FSKTEEERER - BAARFRAM
AN E
/A

EN/NE]
EEEBBRRENAN A REFEIBES0ABEE RS -

BB R 5

BRAAREENEE20139F6 5300 L FE RN 2 55+
BENGE VBRI M AR T WE] - ZSRHBA
RHBRARETHER LETRAE20EBTEHBER
RIEREBLIRRIERENFERER S - KQAHE
B HDETERERETRBE20ENWERE -

HZE2013F6A30R EFE  AEEERE TR EHER
RAERRBAEAT (ERRAIER TR HEES
VEBERG o RETE  RERFGEBENR —MBREBER
BIRPET WEBKAIER ETRAETORERER
5 FIEHIImT o



Under the GEM Listing Rules, these continuing connected transactions are
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
and exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements.
As these continuing connected transactions were entered into prior to
the date of the Listing and details of which have been fully disclosed
in the Prospectus, the Directors consider that compliance with the
announcement requirements in respect of these continuing connected
transactions would be unduly burdensome, impractical and would add
additional administrative costs to the Company. Accordingly, the Company
has, pursuant to Rule 20.42(3) of the GEM Listing Rules, applied to
the Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has granted, a waiver
from strict compliance with the announcement requirements relating to
these continuing connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.
In addition, the Directors confirm the Company will comply with the
applicable provisions under Rules 20.35(1), 20.35(2), 20.36 to 20.40 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

Further details of the continuing connected transactions of the Group are

as follows:

(A) Income received

On 5 October 2012, the Group entered into a master distribution
agreement (the “Master Distribution Agreement”) with PM Motion
Pictures Limited, pursuant to which PM Motion Pictures Limited
has engaged the Group as its exclusive agent for the distribution
of films and TV series in the film library owned by PM Motion
Pictures Limited. The Group is entitled to receive commission of
25% on the gross licence fee received from the relevant films
and TV series by PM Motion Pictures Limited. Such rate may be
adjusted with reference to market rate which is mutually agreed
by both parties. The Master Distribution Agreement has a term
from 31 October 2012, the date of the Listing to 30 June 2015.

PM Motion Pictures Limited is a company indirectly owned by Mr.
Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong in equal shares,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules. Thus, any transaction between the Group and
PM Motion Pictures Limited constitutes a connected transaction of

the Company.
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Details of the transactions under the Master Distribution ZE{THAWBEEBE NS ZHBOT ¢

Agreement are as follows:

Transaction amount

during Annual cap for
the year ended the year ended
Name of connected party ~ B#E A +47E Nature of transaction THHE 30 June 2013 30 June 2013
HZ2013F HZ2013F
6A30B1LFE 6A30H EFER
R5EH8 FELR
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
PM Motion Pictures Limited ~AEZZH R Income received/receivable for RUEY RERERT 1,974 2,500
BB provision of films and TV series ~ MRISHIE U/ el
distribution services A
Expenses paid (B) BETEA
1. Pure Project Limited entered into a lease agreement (as 1. Pure Project Limited?A20114 1031 H 87

supplemented by an agreement dated 5 October 2012)
with the Group on 1 October 2011 in respect of a property
located in Quarry Bay, Hong Kong, which the Group uses
as its Hong Kong office, for a term from 1 October 2011
to 30 June 2015 at a monthly rental of HK$30,000 for the
period from 1 October 2011 to 30 September 2013 and
HK$40,000 for the period from 1 October 2013 to 30 June
2015 (exclusive of rates, utility charges and management

fees).

Pure Project Limited is a company owned as to 99.99%
by Mr. Wong as to 0.01% by Ms. Wong Kit Fong, sister
of Mr. Wong, and is therefore a connected person of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. Thus, any
transaction between the Group and Pure Project Limited

constitutes a connected transaction of the Company.
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On 5 October 2012, the Group entered into a master
film advertising agreement (the “Master Film Advertising
Agreement”) with Chili Advertising & Promotions Limited
("Chili"), pursuant to which Chili would provide film
advertising and promotion services to the Group. The fees
will be determined on an arm’s length basis based on the
prevailing market rates or at rates similar to those offered
by Chili to independent third parties. The Master Film
Advertising Agreement has an initial term from 31 October
2012, the date of the Listing to 30 June 2015.

Chili is a company wholly owned by Mr. Lam Sze Ho
Owen, spouse of Ms. Alvina Wong up to 15 April 2013
and subsequently owned by Ms. Wong Kit Fong from 16
April 2013 onward, and is therefore a connected person
of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. Thus, any
transaction between the Group and Chili constitutes a

connected transaction of the Company.

On 5 October 2012, the Group entered into a master
film processing agreement (the “Master Film Processing
Agreement”) with Pegasus Laboratory (International)
Limited (”Pegasus Laboratory”), pursuant to which
Pegasus Laboratory would provide the Group with film
processing services. The fees will be determined on an
arm’s length basis based on the prevailing market rates
or at rates similar to those offered by Pegasus Laboratory
to independent third parties. The Master Film Processing
Agreement has an initial term from 31 October 2012, the
date of the Listing to 30 June 2015.

Pegasus Laboratory is a company indirectly owned by
Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong
in equal shares, and is therefore a connected person of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. Thus, any
transaction between the Group and Pegasus Laboratory

constitutes a connected transaction.
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4, On 5 October 2012, each of KEFHZHE XLALR)ER
‘A7 (in English, for identification purpose only, Pegasus
Ying Lian Motion Pictures Culture (Beijing) Company
Limited) (“Pegasus Ying Lian”) and #/NKEFE LB R
A 7] (in English, for identification purpose only, Hangzhou
Pegasus Motion Pictures Culture Company Limited)
("Hangzhou Pegasus”) entered into an agency agreement
with the Group in respect of its services of assisting the

Group to obtain initial project approval, when necessary.

Pegasus Ying Lian and Hangzhou Pegasus have been
deemed as connected persons under Rule 20.06 of the
GEM Listing Rules as both companies were set up with
capital provided by Mr. Wong to the beneficial owners of
these two companies in the form of non-interest bearing
loans. As obtaining initial project approval in the PRC can
only be conducted by PRC domestic companies, the Group
has engaged Pegasus Ying Lian and Hangzhou Pegasus,
both being domestic companies, to obtain initial project
approval from the SARFT so as to retain the flexibility
in choosing the PRC co-producers and to expedite the

process of approval of selected co-production projects.

The transactions contemplated under each of the lease agreement,
the Master Film Advertising Agreement, the Master Film Processing
Agreement, and the agency agreements with Pegasus Ying Lian and
Hangzhou Pegasus (collectively, the “Aggregated Non-Exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions”) constitute continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. In addition, pursuant to
Rule 20.27 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange may aggregate
all connected transactions with a single connected person. Under Rule
20.27A of the GEM Listing Rules, in determining whether continuing
connected transactions will be aggregated, the Stock Exchange will take
into account whether the transactions were entered into by an issuer with
the same party or with parties connected or otherwise associated with one
another. In light of Rules 20.27 and 20.27A of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Aggregated Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions have been
aggregated given that the counterparties to the Aggregated Non-Exempt
Continuing Connected Transactions are connected or otherwise associated

with the Company and the transactions are all expense in nature.
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Details of the Aggregated Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions ~ AH T ENERRIFEBEIFHOFBWOT ¢
are as follows:
Transaction amount ~ Annual cap for the
during the year ended year ended
Name of connected parties ~ BEALZH Nature of transactions RAUHE 30 June 2013 30 June 2013
BZ2013F6A308 EZE2013F6A308
LLFE LLFE
RHEH EELR
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
1. Pure Project Limited Pure Project Limited Expense paid/payable for lease of ~ SFEREMEDN /ENER 360 360
a property
2. Chil Chili Expense paid/payable for HRHEYEEREERE 1,304 2,500
provision of film advertising and B/ EREA
promotion services
3. Pegasus Laboratory REHE] Expense paid/payable for FIRUBZIEM AR 2,211 5,500
provision of film processing services 214,/ e &R
4. Pegasus Ying Lian RET Expense paid/payable for RERREREEN,/ 21 230
agency services ETER
5. Hangzhou Pegasus MRS Expense paid/payable for RETREREER/ 148 150
agency services ETER
Total = 4,224 8,740
Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors: BUIERITESER -

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Confirmation of auditor of the Company:

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Company’s auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 20.38
of the GEM Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Directors confirm that the Company maintained the amount of public
float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

Events after the Reporting Period

On 6 August 2013, 70,000,000 new shares of the Company had been
successfully placed at HK$0.9 per share, the net proceeds from issuance
of these new shares were approximately HK$61,300,000. Further
details of the placing arrangement have been set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 19 June 2013 and 6 August 2013.

On 13 August 2013, the Group and Jade Sparkle Holdings Limited (the
"\endor”) entered into a conditional share purchase agreement in relation
to the acquisition of 40% of the entire issued share capital of Jade
Dynasty Holdings Limited (“JDH") at a consideration of HK$60,000,000
together with a share option entitling the Group to acquire from the
Vendor additional 20% or more of the entire issued share capital of JDH.
Further details of the acquisition have been set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 August 2013.
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Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Wong Pak Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 September 2013
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. It met all the code provisions of the Corporate
“Code"”) set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules during the period from the commencement of trading in
shares of Company on the GEM on 31 October 2012 to 30 June 2013 (the
“Relevant Period”) save as the deviation as mentioned in the following

Governance Code (the

section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” in this report.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance practices
in order to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with
the increasingly tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the rising

expectations of shareholders and investors.

Compliance with the Required Standard of
Dealings in Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquires of all the Directors, all the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by

Directors adopted by the Company during the Relevant Period.
Board of Directors

The Company is governed by the Board which has the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company. The Directors are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for
the Group’s activities with a view to developing its business and enhancing

shareholder value.
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Board Composition
The Board comprises the following Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Pak Ming (Chairman)
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kam Tong
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence

The Board currently comprises six Directors, including the Chairman
(being an executive Director), the other two executive Directors, and
three independent non-executive Directors. An updated list of Directors
identifying their roles and functions and whether they are independent
non-executive Directors has been published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange respectively. Biographical details of the
Directors are set out in “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 19 to 21 of this annual report. The composition of the Board is
well balanced. Each of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive
corporate and strategic planning experiences that can contribute to the
business of the Group. During the Relevant Period, the Company has
complied with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors representing more than one-third of the Board and at least
one of them has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. All independent non-executive
Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has received
an annual confirmation of independence from each of the independent
non-executive Directors. The Company considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and promoting
the success of the Company. This is achieved by setting up corporate and
strategic objectives and policies, and the monitoring and evaluations of
operating activities and financial performance of the Company.

All the Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and
acting in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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Mr. Wong (the Chairman and executive Director of the Company) is the
father of Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong (both of executive
Directors of the Company). Ms. Cheng Carman, in capacity of the
production manager included in the senior management of the Company,
is the spouse of Mr. Edmond Wong. Save as disclosed above, there is no
family or other material relationship among members of the Board and
the senior management.

Formal service agreements and letters of appointment have been issued
to the executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
respectively setting out the key terms and conditions of their respective
appointments.

The insurance cover in respect of legal action against the Company’s
Directors and senior officers is covered by the existing Directors & Officers
Liability Insurance Policy of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO")

The Company has not yet adopted A.2.1 of the Code. Under the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of Chairman and CEO should
be separated and would not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should be
clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Wong is the Chairman of the Board and is responsible for the overall
strategy planning and policy making of the Group. The Chairman also
takes the lead to ensure that the Board works effectively and acts in the
best interest of the Company by encouraging the Directors to make active
contribution in Board’s affairs and promoting a culture of openness and
debate.

The Company has no such position as the CEO and therefore the
daily operation and management of the Company is monitored by the
executive Directors as well as the senior management.

The Board is of the view that although there is no CEO, the balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board, which
comprises experienced individuals who would meet from time to time to
discuss issues affecting operation of the Company.

Responsibilities and Delegation of Functions

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management
of the Group. The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the company secretary (the “Company
Secretary”) and senior management of the Company, with a view to
ensuring compliance with the Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations. Any Director may request independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable
request being made to the Board. The day-to-day management,
administration and operations of the Company are delegated to the
executive Directors and senior management of the Company. The Board
has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to these officers for the
implementation of the Board decisions. The Board periodically reviews the
delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to entering into any significant
transactions, the aforesaid officers have to obtain the Board's approval.

No corporate governance committee has been established by the
Company and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties, which included:

(1) developing and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group;

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees;
and

(5) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the Company.

Corporate Governance Report

N
TEERMRE

RERNEESERFUMMAERENERL  28%
=P 2ELEERAAEEBEN  LRIARFNQA
WE((RAWE]D) REREEENERERYE - £RES
BRIAEERRER  EFMESHAREEBR T EFLHT
EXER BMAAARRXN - ARBAEEE - TR
EREERAARANTEERFRELEAT - EF2E
RETEFGARABEERERTRERE -EF9F
HEHCEEBERTIF NI LEFAEARZH - Lt
BEARGESSIE

ARBYARKIIEMEEEREZTES

PEERRE

B
bk
Ht
il
T
]
N

B

R R tmal AR E 2 DEERBER R TR

B REREEREMAEEE 2B RFEE R

=

WA RERARERETERREERETH 2R
BEER

HET - R REREAREERER ZRTTAR

BRFM: R

B ARRETTRIZERRRARF
ERNZHKE -

TEER®

KEIRERIGHR A E] ~ 2012/13 F 3R 41



Corporate Governance Report
/\;LII_/‘\-A— N

/D#&D

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of
Directors

Each of Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong, being all the
executive Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 31 October 2012
renewable automatically until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other expiring at the end of
the initial term or any time thereafter. To demonstrate their commitment
towards the Group upon the Listing, each of the executive Director has
undertaken not to resign or terminate their service contracts during the
initial fixed term of three years commencing from 31 October 2012.

Each of Mr. Lam Kam Tong, Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui
Terence, being all the independent non-executive Directors, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company on 5 October 2012. Each
letter of appointment is for an initial term commencing on the date of the
letter of appointment and shall continue thereafter subject to a maximum
of three years unless terminated by either party giving at least one month’s

notice in writing.

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Association. According to the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors are required to retire from office at
each annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. The Directors
to retire every year shall be those who have been longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment.
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Board Meeting, General Meeting and
Procedures

During the Relevant Period, the Board convened a total of seven board
meetings and no general meeting has been held. The following is the
Directors’ attendance record of meetings held by the Board of the

Company:
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EXE2E8  RRAERER

RIERAEE  EFxea ARt EFees BUER
FIRRAE - U TREFHEARREFTEMETEEN
SRR

Number of
attendance/
number of

board meetings

HERE
EESEEEE
Mr. Wong Pak Ming EXEL- e 6/7
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina =L 6/7
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond mFESAE 5/7
Mr. Lam Kam Tong MEBE L 6/7
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk ERESTE 6/7
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence BE R BN S A& 5/7
Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely ZEFSKECERMH=TE RRERKNER  WEHSZ
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. ERTHBE -
Draft agenda of each Board meeting is sent to all Directors in advance. BAEZEEHMNERERAGHELEAREE  E=2E(
Notice of at least seven days is given for a regular Board meeting. For &©7BZEHELtHBN - EREMEFeNETES S
other Board and committees meetings, reasonable notice is generally —fEZLABEBM EESNHERMAEE  TER
given. Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable AIEERSEIREREESHERITH =B XEZ2E
information are dispatched to all Directors at least three days before each $ NHEREFARIBEEMNHEMXHERAEEFELR

regular Board meeting to ensure that the Directors have sufficient time
to review the related documents and be adequately prepared for the

meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board
meetings and committees meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final versions are open for Directors’ inspection. The Company’s
Articles of Association contains provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates

have a material interest.
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Continuous Professional Development

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding the
duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and
regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of interest and
business of the Group and such induction materials will also be provided
to newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.
All Directors have been updated on the latest developments regarding the
GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. Continuing briefings and professional development to Directors
will be arranged whenever necessary.

During the Relevant Period, the Company had organised a seminar on the
updates of the GEM Listing Rules and SFO for the Directors. The seminar
was facilitated by the Company’s legal advisor with presentation and
relevant materials. The relevant materials were also sent to the Directors
who were not available to attend the seminar for their information. In
addition, all Directors were provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
business, operations and financial matters to facilitate the discharge
of their responsibilities. During the Relevant Period, the Directors also
participated in other training activities such as attending seminars and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s businesses or to their duties
and responsibilities as directors of a listed company.

All Directors had provided the Company Secretary with their training
records for the Relevant Period.

Board Committees

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Board has established three
board committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company,
with written terms of reference which are available for viewing on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange to assist them in the
efficient implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have
been delegated to the above committees.
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Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee on 5 October 2012 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of
the GEM Listing Rules and the Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are mainly to communicate with external auditor; to review
the remuneration, terms of engagement, independency and objectivity of
the external auditor; to review the accounting policy, financial position and
financial reporting procedures of the Company; and to assess the financial
reporting system, internal control procedures and risk management

function of the Company and making recommendations thereof.

The Audit Committee has three members comprising Mr. Lam Kam Tong
(Chairman), Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence. During
the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee had reviewed the interim results
and report of the Company for the period ended 31 December 2012 and
first and third quarterly results and reports of the Company for the periods
ended 30 September 2012 and 31 March 2013 respectively. Subsequent
to 30 June 2013 and up to the date of this report, all members of the
Audit Committee attended a meeting to review the Group’s internal
controls for the year ended 30 June 2013. The Group’s final results for
the year ended 30 June 2013 had been reviewed by the Audit Committee
Members of the Audit
Committee were of the opinion that the preparation of such results

before submission to the Board for approval.

complied with the applicable accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules
and that adequate disclosure have been made.

During the Relevant Period, the attendance of each member of the Audit
Committee is contained in the following table:
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Number of
attendance/
number of
meeting
HERE
EEEe3¥E

MEPE L
BREBELE
MERE AL

Mr. Lam Kam Tong
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence

3/3
3/3
3/3
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 5 October 2012
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to review of the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become the Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships
of the Company and to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. In reviewing and recommending the appointment
of new directors, the Nomination Committee would seek to identify the
competencies required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities.
The resume or document of the nominee or candidate will be given to
the Nomination Committee for consideration. The Nomination Committee
has adopted a process for selection and appointment of new directors
which provides the procedure for identification of potential candidates,
evaluation of the suitability of the candidate based on his qualifications,
skills, knowledge, business and related experience, commitment, ability to
contribute to the Board process and such qualities and attributes that may
be required by the Board. The Nomination Committee shall review the
Board Diversity Policy established for implementing diversity on the Board
periodically.

The Nomination Committee has three member comprising Mr. Lo Eric
Tien-cheuk (Chairman), Mr. Lam Kam Tong and Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence.
Subsequent to 30 June 2013 and up to the date of this report, one
meeting of the Nomination Committee was held to review the structure,
composition of the Board, adoption of the Board Diversity Policy and
revised written terms of reference to the Nomination Committee. All
members of the Nomination Committee attended the meeting.

During the Relevant Period, no meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 5 October
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to review the
terms of the remuneration package of each Director and member of
senior management and making recommendations to the Board regarding
any adjustment thereof; and to review and evaluate the performance of
individual Directors. No Director shall participate in any discussion about

his or her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has three members comprising Mr. Tang Kai
Kui Terence (Chairman), Mr. Lam Kam Tong and Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk.
The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to their
respective experience, responsibilities with the Group and general market
conditions. Subsequent to 30 June 2013 and up to the date of this report,
one meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held to review the
remuneration package of the Directors and senior management of the
Company. All members of the Remuneration Committee attended the

meeting.

During the Relevant Period, no meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company's
consolidated financial statements for each financial year and to ensure
that the consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement by the auditor of the Company about their responsibilities
for the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 51 to 52 of this annual report. The Board also
ensures the timely publication of the financial statements. The Directors,
having made appropriate enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid/payable to the auditors of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2013 is set out as follows:

Services rendered

BT <

EHZ=2013F6A308 L FE - B/ B4 & B 4% ZAD B
SEINWT -

Paid/payable

2R AR Bt ENeE

HK$'000

R IT

Statutory audit services TETEZEURT 768
Non-statutory audit services: IEEZEARTE

Tax compliance and consulting services BB ARG 68

Total = 836

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the internal control system of the
Company. The Board has developed its systems of internal control and
risk management and is also responsible for reviewing and maintaining
an adequate internal control system to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the assets of the Company. During the Relevant Period
and up to the date of this report, the Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company.

Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Chi Ming joined the Group in December 2011 and has been
the Company Secretary since October 2012. The biographical details of
the Company Secretary are set out under the section headed “Profiles of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. The Company
Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the Relevant Period.

Shareholders’ Rights
Communications with shareholders

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its shareholders, and investors. These include answering
questions through the general meeting, the publication of annual, interim
and quarterly reports, notices, announcements and circulars and the
Company'’s website at www.pegasusmovie.com.

During the Relevant Period, there had no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Any general meeting other
than an annual general meeting shall be referred as an extraordinary
general meeting ("EGM").

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the GEM Listing Rules
and the Company’s Articles of Association as amended from time to time,
shareholders may convene an EGM to consider proposals in accordance
with the following provisions:

1. One or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings can
deposit a written request to convene an EGM at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong
Office”), for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary.

2. The written request must state the name of the shareholders
concerned, their respective shareholdings, the objects of the
meeting, including details of the business(es) and resolutions
proposed to be considered and approved at the meeting, signed
by the shareholders concerned.

3. The request will be verified with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrars and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene
an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the shareholders. On the contrary,
if the request has been verified as not in order, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an
EGM will not be convened as requested.

4. If within 21 days of such deposit of the requisition, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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5. The notice period to be given to the shareholders in respect of
the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal. Notice
of the EGM at which the passing of a special resolution is to be
considered, notice of the EGM shall be arranged to be sent to
the shareholders at least 21 clear days or 10 clear business days
(whichever is longer) before such EGM. Notice of all other EGM
shall be arranged to be sent to the shareholders at least 14 clear
days or 10 clear business days (whichever is longer) before such
EGM.

6. There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2011 Revision) or the Company’s Articles
of Association. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution
may request the Company to convene an EGM following the
procedures set out above in this section.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders and other stakeholders can make any enquiry in respect
of the Company in writing either by email at ir@pegasusmovie.com or
deposited at the Hong Kong Office for the attention of the Board or
the Company Secretary. The appropriate management member of the
Company will respond to the legitimate enquiry of the shareholders, the
Company's potential investors or analysts.
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Deloitte.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF PEGASUS ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pegasus
Entertainment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 119,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR S EliE TS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2013, and of its
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 September 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

4re B M A 2 R m

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #Z%E2013F6A308ILFE

2013 2012
20135 20124F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
PitEE BT T BT T
Revenue Wz 8 192,645 137,186
Cost of sales SHER AR (127,362) (81,048)
Gross profit ESAl 65,283 56,138
Other income and gain HA A Rk 974 2,587
Selling and distribution expenses HENMETHY (21,794) (16,192)
Administrative expenses TE R (16,976) (7,971)
Finance costs BhE KA 10 (53) (559)
Other expenses Hbfk (3,806) (7,497)
Profit before tax MR 5 AT A 23,628 26,506
Income tax expense FTiSBiM 11 (4,484) (5,525)
Profit and total comprehensive income RARHEB NEEFENRF R
for the year attributable to owners ZHEWALLTE
of the Company 12 19,144 20,981
Earnings per share BRRAEF
Basic (HK cents) HA (Bl 15 5.2 7.1
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sre AR

At 30 June 2013 74201346 H30H

2013 2012
20134 20124
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BaE BT T BT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E VY& 16 1,839 909
Prepayment to an artiste TEfEE I8 20 30,000 30,000
Deferred tax asset IRERIEE = 27 99 -
31,938 30,909
Current assets REBEE
Film rights B NRE 17 33,241 8,560
Film production in progress SUHER TR 17 26,668 122,186
Investments in film/drama production BEREE / BEIRYE 18 35,577 =
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A e R IE 19 24,274 5,553
Prepayment to an artiste T EE A 20 10,000 10,000
Amounts due from related companies Alge) NCIE R 21 - 342
Tax recoverable AT UK [E1 75 TE 35 -
Pledged bank deposit BRI TIF X 22 30,055 =
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 23 29,973 15,937
189,823 162,578
Current liabilities Gk =R
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMER IR 24 7,850 3,240
Receipts in advance TR IR 24 9,251 85,953
Amounts due to related companies ViRl NI E ] 21 3,335 1,702
Amount due to a director JENESHIA 25 - 50,000
Tax payable FEFLIA 7,405 9,544
Unsecured bank borrowings EAX IR TIE R 26 - 1,957
27,841 152,396
Net current assets mEVEEFE 161,982 10,182
Net assets/Total assets less current liabilities &EFE A EERTEAE 193,920 41,091
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital/capital fEAS & AR 28 4,000 10
Reserves EE 189,920 41,081
Total Equity ERBE 193,920 41,091
The consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 119 were approved A ES3EFI119B 2GRN KRR HEEFT SR 201349

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 September 2013 A23B#LERE#ETIE - WHUTATRAES

and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Pak Ming Wong Yee Kwan Alvina

ECEL B
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
iReEmE IR

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #%E2013F6A308ILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREE AES
Share
capital/ Share Other Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total

BA S EA ROBE HtRE  REER aEf
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AT BT AT ARt  ABTT

(Note)
(Ff3%)
At 1 July 2011 R2011F7A1H 10 = - 20,100 20,110
Profit and total comprehensive FREMNREE = ER
income for the year - - - 20,981 20,981
At 30 June 2012 7201296 A30H 10 = = 41,081 41,091
Profit and total comprehensive FRmAEEEBALLEE
income for the year - - - 19,144 19,144
Arising on Reorganisation RREEETARND (10) = 10 - -
Issue of shares upon the loan A ERE AN EEETTD
capitalisation (note 28) (FF5E28) - 50,000 - = 50,000
Issue of shares upon B BEITIR D
capitalisation issue (note 28) (BfF5E28) 3,000 (3,000) = = =
Issue of new shares (note 28) BITEAR M (MH5E28) 1,000 89,000 - - 90,000
Cost of issuing new shares BITHAR D AR = (6,315) = = (6,315)
At 30 June 2013 720136 A30H 4,000 129,685 10 60,225 193,920

Note:  Other reserve represents the difference between the aggregate nominal value of iz : HMFEEEBRBEAEEAZERALARARNDNREBHER S

the respective share capital of the companies now comprising the subsidiaries FrAR AR AIRR ETAAMIBREMMN2012F10 A58 #
of the Company over the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued TZEEER  RAKRARRASHBARNARSERA
pursuant to the group reorganisation exercise on 5 October 2012 to rationalise HRE(E AR B AR EE R AN M B TRIR D EEMEE -

the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares

on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IW\ ﬂ%\/ﬁﬁﬁaig

For the year ended 30 June 2013 & ZE2013F6A308 IEFE

2013 2012
20134 20124F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R RE
Profit before tax R %5 AT A 23,628 26,506
Adjustments for: BRI ESIER AR
Interest expenses FEFREx 53 559
Interest income AMEMA (136) (662)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENRETE 475 320
Operating cash flows before movements in LEESEPRILEHENE
working capital 24,020 26,723
Decrease (increase) in film rights and BRI REERERR A (350)
film production in progress 70,837 (86,314)
Increase in investments in film/drama production BT/ BEISEE M (35,577) -
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables B S R EMEWEIE (320) Bl (18,721) 2,710
Decrease in amounts due from related companies JFE LR A A Bl IR 342 14,009
Increase in trade and other payables f’f%&ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ KIFIE AN 4,610 2,581
(Decrease) increase in receipts in advance TEWGRIE CR2) 8N (76,702) 52,108
Increase in amounts due to related companies JFE A~ AR A B R IEEE AN 1,633 822
Net cash (used in) generated from operations we (FrA) MR & %8 (29,558) 12,639
Income tax paid EHF)’T SH (6,759) =
Income tax refunded IREIATEH 2 -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES eSEE) (FRA) TSRS %58 (36,315) 12,639
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERH
Placement of pledged bank deposit FE ERRITER (30,055) =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYZE - BB RE&HE (1,405) (194)
Interest received BUFIE 136 662
Withdrawal of bank deposit REERTTER - 11,840
Advances to related companies B bl 2L /NG] - (150)
Repayment of loan receivable EEERER - 1,427
Repayments from related companies K B BEHE N Bl R X - 740
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE (PTA) PRSIREFHE (31,324) 14,325
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A ==
MEREMER
For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

2013 2012

20135 20124F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEH
Proceeds from issue of new shares BATHR 1S 5/IE 90,000 =
Cost of issuing new shares BT A (6,315) -
Repayments of bank borrowings EBIBITIER (1,957) (805)
Interest paid 2RFLE (53) (450)
Advance from a director REEEHRN - 16,342
Repayment to a director EEEERIE - (34,772)
Loan financing raised EENERRE - 6,512
Loan from a director REEEMER - 2,500
Loan from a related company KA BEHE A B ER - 1,000
Repayment of loan financing BEREEFRE - (6,512)
Repayment of loan from a director BEKBEENER - (2,500)
Repayment of loan from a related company 182 2K B AR N R & 3K - (1,000)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMERBHE (FA) Ba%R 81,675 (19,685)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B MBS EBEYILINERE 14,036 7,279
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING FHR S RIRESEEY

OF THE YEAR 15,937 8,658
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR, fFRIi$ RIBS%EY -
represented by bank balances and cash BIRITASRKEIRE 29,973 15,937
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INZAAS

sre MR

For the year ended 30 June 2013 & ZE2013F6A308 IEFE

58

General

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 8 March 2012 and its shares have been listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 31 October
2012. The Company's registered office is located at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business is located at Rooms
1801-2, Westlands Centre, 20 Westland Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong. Its immediate and ultimate holding company is Honour
Grace Limited (“Honour Grace”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI").

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in film production, distribution and licensing
of film rights. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 36.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Reorganisation

Under a group reorganisation exercise on 5 October 2012 (the
“Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure of the Group in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, the Company became
the holding company of the Companies now comprising the
Group. Details of the Reorganisation were set out in the paragraph
headed “Reorganisation” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus dated
9 October 2012 issued by the Company (the “Prospectus”).

The principal steps of the Reorganisation, which involved the
exchange of shares, were as follows:

(i) On 9 December 2011, Green Riches Holdings Limited
("Green Riches”) was incorporated and one share was
allotted and issued to Honour Grace on 22 December
2011. Honour Grace was owned as to 60% by Mr.
Wong Pak Ming (“Mr. Wong”), 20% by Ms. Wong Yee
Kwan Alvina and 20% by Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond,
collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Reorganisation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 5 October 2012, Honour Grace, through Green
Riches, acquired from PM Entertainment Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Pegasus Entertainment
Holdings Limited and wholly owned by the Controlling
Shareholders), the entire issued share capital of Pegasus
Motion Pictures Production Limited, Pegasus Motion
Pictures (Hong Kong) Limited, Pegasus Motion Pictures
Distribution Limited and Star Pictures Entertainment
Limited; as consideration for these acquisitions by Honour
Grace and at the direction of PM Entertainment Holdings
Limited, Honour Grace allotted and issued a total of five
new shares, credited as fully paid to Mr. Wong Pak Ming
as to three shares, Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina as to one
share and Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond as to one share.

On 5 October 2012, Honour Grace, through Green Riches,
acquired from the Controlling Shareholders, the entire
issued share capital of Star Pictures Entertainment (Hong
Kong) Limited; as consideration for such acquisition by
Honour Grace, Honour Grace allotted and issued a total
of five new shares, credited as fully paid to Mr. Wong Pak
Ming as to three shares, Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina as
to one share and Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond as to one
share.

On 5 October 2012, the Company acquired the entire
issued share capital of Green Riches from Honour Grace,
in consideration of which the Company allotted and issued
9,999 new shares to Honour Grace and becomes the
holding company of the Group.

As the Group is controlled by the Controlling Shareholders before

and after the Reorganisation, the consolidated financial statements

of the Group have been prepared using the principles of merger

accounting as if the group structure under the Reorganisation

had been in existence throughout the two years ended 30 June

2012 and 2013, or since their respective dates of incorporation

or establishment of the relevant companies now comprising the

Group, where these is a shorter period.

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

2. E#A(#E)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

MR2012F10A5H + & B & B B ¥ mPM
Entertainment Holdings Limited (BifE X5
IREIERBR AR - WHERKRREZEH
B)RBRESEXREARLAF XEE
wihm (B8) BRAF - REEXETAE
RARIREMREFRAAINZHEET
B ERRBETZEFRBENRERIER
F&PM Entertainment Holdings Limited#J#g
™ RBEMERELEE  BERHLLIEET
18 % A L RETA R A RARIIER R B
il BRESFEG=R - —RER—BER

,T/\ ®

20125 10A58 L RE BB MIZRAR
RINEEMRE (F5) ARARNEHE
BITRA  (ERRBRETEBRENRE -
LRAMBEFBLE  FBRAL T REFEL
AR RETREARRARIESR O
B ESRER=R - —RE—BRRND -

M2012510A58 + AR ARK DI EERE
NEFEEITRAE - (ERRE - ARAIMSK
BBR 3 R EE1T9, 999 FT AR I A 72 7R &= [ Y
e NI

ARAEBNBHEREBIERREES - AEBE
EHBRERBEAMEHRAGRE  MOEAETH
EEEEREZE2012F X20135F6 A308 (LM EF
EXBBRERAEENEBARS B FMK I
RS BHADASR (AR IR AE) —EFE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Asset

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income

Except as described below, the application of the HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income” introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement. Under
the amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of comprehensive
income’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’. Other than the above mentioned
presentation change, the application of the amendments to
HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2009 - 2011 Cycle, except for
the amendments HKAS1'

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities'
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7 and Transition Disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance'

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities?
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements’

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements'

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities’

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement’

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits'

3.

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

RRAEEMBREER (THEM
BHREER ) (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21

Separate Financial Statements'

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets?

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine'

Levies?

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

2

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. HKFRS 11
deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. HK (SIC) — Int 13 Jointly
Controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers
will be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under
HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations
or joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are
three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled assets and jointly controlled operations. In addition,
joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for
using the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled
entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting or proportionate consolidation.

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and joint
operations is different. Investments in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method (proportionate consolidation is no
longer allowed). Investments in joint operations are accounted for
such that each joint operator recognises its assets (including its
share of any assets jointly held), its liabilities (including its share
of any liabilities incurred jointly), its revenue (including its share of
revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation) and its
expenses (including its share of any expenses incurred jointly). Each
joint operator accounts for the assets and liabilities, as well as
revenue and expenses, relating to its interest in the joint operation
in accordance with the applicable standards.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
classification of the Group’s investments in joint arrangements
in accordance with the requirement of HKFRS 11. The directors
concluded that the Group’s investments in joint arrangements in
relation to the film production in progress, which are currently
classified as joint controlled assets under HKAS 31, should be
classified as joint operations under HKFRS 11. HKFRS 11 will be
applied by the Group in its financial period beginning on 1 July
2013 and the application of HKFRS 11 is not expected to have
material impact to the Group.

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE
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Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and/or unconsolidated structure entities. HKFRS 12 will be applied
by the Group in its financial period beginning on 1 July 2013. In
general, the application of HKFRS 12 will result in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements in relation to

the joint arrangements of the Group.
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for
which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified
circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
13 are more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the
three-level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted. HKFRS 13
will be applied by the Group in its financial period beginning on
1 July 2013 and the directors anticipate that the application of
the new standard may result in more extensive disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of

the above new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the financial performance and financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods or services.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on combination.

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been consolidated from the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the control of the Controlling
Shareholders.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the Controlling
Shareholders’ perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of acquirer ‘s interest in the net fair value of
acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
cost at the time of common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the Controlling Shareholders’ interest.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes
the results of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the common control, where
this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common

control combination.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for services
provided and sales of goods in the normal course of business, net
of discount.

Income from the distribution of own produced films is recognised
when the production is completed, the film has been released and
distributed to the cinema circuit and the amount can be measured
reliably, which is generally when the cinema circuit confirms to the
Group its share of box office receipts.

Income from the licensing of the distribution rights over films
is recognised when the Group’s entitlement to such payments
has been established which, subject to the terms of the relevant
agreements, is usually upon delivery of the film negatives to the

customers.

Amounts received for the distribution rights over films before
completion and delivery of production are accounted for as
receipts in advance.

Income from advertising service is recognised upon the provision
of the services. Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount can be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Film rights and film production in progress

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any). The Group amortised
costs of film rights in the same ratio that current period actual
revenue (numerator) bears to estimated total projected revenue
(denominator). The Group begins amortisation of the capitalised
costs of film rights when a film is released and it begins to

recognise revenue from that film.

The Group reviews and revises estimates of total projected revenue
and total production costs of film rights at the end of each
reporting period. If estimates are revised, the Group adjusts the
amount of total projected revenue (denominator) from the period
when such changes in estimates take place and re-calculated the
ratio for amortisation of film rights. The effect from changes in

estimates is recognised on a prospective basis.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Film rights and film production in progress
(continued)

Film production in progress is stated at cost less any provision
for impairment losses. Cost includes all costs associated with the
production of films including remuneration for the film director,
casts and production crew, costumes, insurance, makeup and
hairdressing as well as rental of camera and lighting equipment.
Film production in progress is transferred to film rights upon
completion.

Joint ventures
Jointly controlled assets

When a group entity undertakes film production activities
under joint venture arrangements (which do not involve the
establishment of a corporate entity) and shares the ownership
of the film rights upon completion of the production with other
ventures, such film rights are classified as jointly controlled assets.
The Group recognises its share of the jointly controlled asset and
its share of liabilities incurred jointly with other ventures in the
consolidated statements of financial position, classified according

to their nature.

The Group recognises the income derived from the jointly
controlled assets (in accordance with its revenue recognition policy
set out above), together with its share of any expenses incurred
in respect of its interest in the jointly controlled assets in its
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of

rental expense on a straight-line basis.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes/the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of the company (“foreign currencies”) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity under the heading of translation reserve.
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and
deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or

financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
investments in film/drama production, trade and other receivables,
pledged bank deposit and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of loans and receivables below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of loans
and receivables, the estimated future cash flows of loans and
receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio,
as well as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and

amounts due to related companies) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the group companies are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
remeasured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment losses on assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the management are required to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
twelve months from the end of each reporting period.
Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012/13
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Amortisation of film rights

The Group is required to estimate the projected revenue of the
film rights based on their economic lives in order to ascertain the
amount of amortisation charges for each reporting period. The
appropriateness of the amortisation estimate requires the use of
judgement and assumptions with reference to the prevailing and
future market conditions to estimate total projected revenue over
their economic lives. Changes in these estimates and assumptions
could have a material effect on the amortisation expenses.
The carrying amount of the film rights as at 30 June 2013 is
HK$33,241,000 (2012: HK$8,560,000).

Estimated impairment loss on film rights and film
production in progress

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
film rights and film production in progress with reference to its
intended use and current market environment and its expectation
of future market conditions. Appropriate impairment for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether impairment on film rights and film
production in progress is required, the Group takes into
consideration the distribution and license agreements entered into
by the Group and the current market environment to project cash
flows expected to be received through box office receipts and
distribution and licensing income. Impairment is recognised in the
period in which the recoverable amount is less than the carrying
amount. The carrying amount of film rights as at 30 June 2013 is
HK$33,241,000 (2012: HK$8,560,000). The carrying amount of
film production in progress as at 30 June 2013 is HK$26,668,000
(2012: HK$122,186,000).

5.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment loss on investments in film/
drama production

In assessing the recoverability of investments in film/drama
production, the Group’s management assessed the credibility
of the counterparties, the progress of the related film/drama
production and the market condition. The Group’s management
determines the provision for impairment of investments in film/
drama production taking in account the estimation of future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of
investments in film/drama production as at 30 June 2013 is
HK$35,577,000 (2012: nil).

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to the stakeholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,

comprising capital and retained profits.

The management of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the management
consider the cost of capital and the risks associates with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the management,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

Financial instruments 7. €®IA
Categories of financial instruments 7a. SRITEWNESE
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T EEET T
THE GROUP REEFH
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables BN R s
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREES RIS ZEEY) 119,363 21,659
Financial liabilities SRIEE
Amortised cost B AN 9,670 56,432
Financial risk management objectives and policies 7b. TRIEREEBEREX

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, investments in film/drama production, amounts due
from related companies, pledged bank deposit, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, amounts due to related
companies, amount due to a director and unsecured bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with the Group’s financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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REBR /BB E BEBABARRE  2E
MBITER - RITEBRRE - BHREMERK
A ENEEEAQRFIR - BN ERIA R EEIRER
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Financial instruments (continued) 7. @MIA (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies 7b. S£REMREEBZREX (&)
(continued)
Market risk 3% & e
Currency risk B
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a ERRBRASHRITANAFERRRASREAIN
financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign W FEE S 428 B 1 OB 2 P 72 A O R
exchange rates.
The functional currency of all group companies is the HK$ except EBFRFEKEATININEEE Y BB - HitRX
for ERKREBERZHRXCBRAR ("IERARE") of which its AR ERAF ([ERXE]D) Bod - H
functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB"”). At the end of each NeEEERARE ([ARK]) - REBREHR - &
reporting period, the carrying amount of the monetary assets EXERRMINEAENEBEERBEREEN
and liabilities of the group companies, which are denominated in TS 8
foreign currencies, are as follows:
2013 2012
20135 20124
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE a8 BE BE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BETT BET T
Australian Dollar (“AUD") BT (DRI 15 - 117 =
RMB AR 17,946 6,310 392 -
United States Dollar (“USD") x5 ([Z=x)) 26,905 1,774 4,454 -

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of RMB
and USD. Since HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect
any significant movement in USD/HK$ exchange rate and this is
excluded from the sensitivity analysis below. No sensitivity analysis
for AUD is presented as management considered the exposure is
insignificant. Management will monitor foreign exchange exposure

to mitigate the foreign currency risk.

At the end of each reporting period, certain group companies,
of which their functional currency is HK$, had amounts due from
which are denominated in RMB. These intra-group balances are
approximately HK$10,497,000 (2012: HK$8,495,000) as at 30
June 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

TEMTH (&)

Financial instruments (continued) 7.

TRAREEERRBER (8)

Financial risk management objectives and policies 7b.

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in HK$ against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
which represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items including the above intra-group balances and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax profit where HK$ weaken 5% against RMB.
For a 5% strengthening of HK$ against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and
the balances below would be negative.

misERE (&)

E¥mEE (&)

TRAJNAEEAREE L ARBEHERRZES%H
BURE - EIEEHIAINEE RS IR A g B TTAT
HRRANBEELRR5% - FREDTEIEE
G IE B sHEM R AN IMNE (B LA EER
ERAEER) RN IR E B R A SIMNE [ 5% ey BB ETT
BRERE - TXAREHANRTEBEELARKEZE
5% R BRI AIEIN - EREE R BREETAES%
B AESEMELRSERERYE MU TEH
BREH -

2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BEET T
Profit or loss (note) B (MEE) 1,451 371

Note:  This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on trade
receivables, amounts due from (to) related companies, bank balances,
other payables and intra-group balances at the end of the respective

reporting period.

The management of the Group considered the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
exposure at the end of each reporting period does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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) BB A RFOR ~ RITAEER - RMOENFAERSE
EABEHAEERRER

RS RS R E e I T R R F AR R - SR
SEEEERRBURE DI AR EA BN E R

& o
v

KEIREIEAAR AT ~ 2012/13 F1R 81



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A

ire B SRR T T

For the year ended 30 June 2013 & ZE20136F6 A30H ILFE

7b.

82

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to bank balances (2012: bank balances and unsecured bank
borrowings) which is arranged at floating rate and fair value
interest rate risk in relation to pledged bank deposit and
investments in film/drama production.

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk was mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Prime Rate
of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited arising from the Group’s
HK$ denominated borrowings.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at
the end of the reporting period. At 30 June 2013, the Group has
no exposure to interest rate risk for unsecured bank borrowings
and no sensitivity analysis is prepared. As at 30 June 2012, for
unsecured bank borrowings, the analysis was prepared assuming
the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding at the end of
the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease was used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher for unsecured
bank borrowings and all other variables were held constant, the
impact to the Group’s profit for the year is as follows:

7b.

TEMTH (&)

TRAREERRRBER (&)

AR

NEXEBRRERTANQXFEIRKREREFE
TSR H LR KBE R o

AEBEEE A BRT MR LI RITA (2012
FRTEHRRERERRTER NRSREH =X
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SEN R TFERN KRR -

REE2012F6 A30B I FE - AEENRESRE
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2013 2012
20135 20126
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT

Decrease in profit for the year

F R AR

- (8)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points lower and all other
variables were held constant, these would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

If interest rate had been 50 basis points higher for bank balances,

7.

7b.

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

TEMTH (&)

TREAREEBERBEK (&)
i@ (4)

R ERITAEEREV AR L FHS0E R - MAAEEMmEE

and all other variables were held constant, the impact to the BRTE  HAEBFRNRMOZEMT
Group's profit for the year is as follows:
2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Increase in profit for the year G R0E A3 N 124 66

No further sensitivity analysis for bank balances is presented as
management of the Group considered that it is not meaningful to
assume a decrease of 50 basis points lower for the interest rate
because the bank balances carried interest at 0.01% to 0.38%
(2012: 0.01% to 0.3%) per annum during the current year.

Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
management of the Group consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds including pledged bank deposit and
bank balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with
good reputation.

The Group was exposed to concentration of credit risk on one
of its trade customers which accounted for 20% (2012: nil) of
its trade receivables as at 30 June 2013. The top customer has a
good repayment history and long-term working relationship with
the Group.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group was exposed to concentration of credit risk on a
production house which accounted for 54% (2012: nil) of its
investments in film/drama production as at 30 June 2013. The
production house is an independent third party, which is well-
known film/drama production house in United States.

Except for the above, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and other sources of
fundings and considers the risk is minimal.

The following tables provide details of the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest dates on which the Group can be required
to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
Specifically, unsecured bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause was included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates. To the extend that interest
flows are floating rate, the undisclosed amount is derived from
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

Financial instruments (continued) 7. &®IA (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies 7b. S£REMREEBZREX (&)
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) mEBESRRE (58)
THE GROUP PN
Weighted Total
average effective  On demand or 91-365 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 0-90 days days Over 1 year cash flows amount
T RERY AHR
ERA= 02908 912365A L RERBER afE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
% BT AETT AU AU BETT
At 30 June 2013 120136 A30A
Trade and other payables B S RAMENZE - 6,335 - - 6,335 6,335
Amounts due to related companies FE R ARIIE - 3,335 - - 3,335 3,33
9,670 - - 9,670 9,670
Weighted
average effective  On demand or 91-365 Total undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 0-90 days days QOver 1 year cash flows amount
HEF BER AHER
BRI 0Z90R 9123658 —FHE REnesnsE KAfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 30 June 2012 12012564308
Trade and other payables BHREMENFE - 2773 = - 2173 2113
Amounts due to related companies EREBARE - 1,702 = S 1,702 1,702
Amount due to a director ERNEZZE - 50,000 - - 50,000 50,000
Unsecured bank borrowings mEARTES 5.90 1957 = = 1,957 1,957
56,432 = = 56,432 56,432
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire B SRR T T

For the year ended 30 June 2013 & ZE20136F6 A30H ILFE

7. Financial instruments (continued) 7.

7c.  Fair value 7c.

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The management of the Group consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate their fair

E®T A (&)
AT
SREELRERABERNAFEDRBEAREERRN

REMHBRRERESTMETE °

AEBERERR - REHEKANGS BB R
SIBRM SR EE R B AR E R A:HE’jHE 9

values.
8. Revenue 8. W=
2013 2012

20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT TT

Film production, distribution and BRRUE - BT REITER
licensing income FFAIA 190,218 134,480
Advertising income BEERA 453 1,350
Service income BRAEU A 1,974 1,356
192,645 137,186

9. Segment information 9. ZoIWER

The Group identifies operating segments on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the directors of the Company, the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM") in order to allocate resources to the
segments and to assess their performance.

The Group is principally engaged in the film production,
distribution and licensing of film rights in Hong Kong, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), South East Asia Region, Europe
and United States. Information reported to the CODM for the
purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment focus
on the film production, distribution and licensing of the Group as
a whole as the Group’s resources are integrated. Accordingly, the
Group has only one single operating segment — film production,
distribution and licensing and no further analysis of this single
segment is presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information (continued)

Segment profit represents the gross profit of the Group without
allocation of other income and gain, selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses, finance costs and other
expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

As the Group’s segment assets and liabilities are not regularly
provided to the Group’s CODM, the relevant analysis for both
years is not presented.

Geographical information
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers by

geographical market based on where the film distribution and

licensing income is derived from are as below:

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

2EE R (5)

7 B M HE AN SR B E A - 3 oy B E A U R
& HEREITHN  THREAN - BEKARHM
X o Wb I ERD B KRBT AR E B EERK
EERHRENTR -

HRAEEN D HEEK B EWIETE R A KB
TELERRERME  RYEZIMEAFENFREE
DT

i & & R

AEBRAIFZFHRSIREREITREITHRRE
FREF AT A PTAEIR T5 B D AT T

2013 2012
201345 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Hong Kong and Macau S 31,883 15,512
The PRC H 129,175 102,649
South East Asia Region R IR 12,201 16,322
Others EAfh 19,386 2,703
192,645 137,186

The Group’s non-current assets are located in Hong Kong.
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

REENIERBEEMTRES -
FHEIEEFNEN

REREFEAASEERHEERERBI0%NER
Ieesan T

2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Customer A ZEA 95,100 —*
Customer B ZFB - 48,139
Customer C BEC - 46,790
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total e TS E RS AR ERHETEN10% °

sales of the Group.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013 & ZE20136F6 A30H ILFE

10. Finance costs 10. RE KA
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable ARAFABHEBRRITER
within five years EEIFE 35 142
Interest on bank overdraft RITIE R E LR 18 5
Interest on advance from a director and REEE MR RN
a related company EERTE - 39
Effective interest expense on a loan financing EFBENERMNEAZ - 597
53 783
Less: Interest capitalised in film production in B BUERBEMERNEFE
progress - (224)
53 559

Borrowing cost capitalised for the year ended 30 June 2012 arose
from a loan financing that was used to finance the production of
a specific film.

B E2012%6 A30H LLFEE AL AV E KA T 2K
B— %Ewﬂé ZEERREDREE—HEE
BERMHEE

VA
11. Income tax expense 11. FIBHAX
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
The income tax expense comprises: FiEHF < B
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENEH
— current — BIHER 4,703 5,525
— overprovision in prior years — BEFEHBREEHE (537) =
4,166 5,525
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") RECZERER ([EMERH]) 417 -
4,583 5,525
Deferred taxation (note 27) RIERIE (fIE27) (99) =
4,484 5,525

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiary is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards. The PRC subsidiary had incurred loss for the year
ended 30 June 2012 and no provision for EIT was made for that year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

Income tax expense (continued) 1. FISHmExX (&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before FABEZHEGEERREMEZEARERNTH
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other BRTLADE M ERAT -

comprehensive income as follows:

2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit before tax R A% A& A 23,628 26,506
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% BTS2 16.5% 5t E /Y
(2012: 16.5%) 18 (20124 : 16.5%) 3,899 4,373
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BARRIMANT G E (96) (108)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for DA ARG TE
tax purpose 1,218 1,260
Overprovision in prior years B FERBEEE (537) =
Tax charge for the year FARIAZ H 4,484 5225
Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 27. SEFERS A SIS NI 27 -
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For the year ended 30 June 2013 & ZE20136F6 A30H ILFE

12. Profit for the year

12. EFRHF

2013 2012
20135 20124F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after FE MmN TR & I81E
charging: HE
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) EEEM (FFE13) 4,070 3,867
Other staff costs HbB TAA 4,783 3,081
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RNRAGEIER - TREES
excluding those of directors H 356 164
Total staff costs B IR A4REE 9,209 7,112
Auditor’s remuneration RN BN & 768 718
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENERETE 475 320
Cost of film rights recognised as an expense R AR B E AR A 127,362 81,048
Minimum lease payments under operating leases KEHEE NHRERENK 1,354 1,284
Listing expenses (included in other expenses) EmRAxZ (PIAEMFS) 3,806 7,497
and after crediting: Wat AT EIHEFE ¢
Bank interest income HRITHEUA 136 631
Net exchange gain PE 5 I 255 58 100 1,275
Interest income from loan receivable from JE U A B N B B FRAFI B AR A
a related company - 31
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Directors’, chief executive’s and
employees’ emoluments

= A\
AR f

V5 R

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

13. EE THARBKEEME

Directors and the chief executive EERITHAR
Details of the emoluments paid by the Group to the directors and AEEFRENARAIES RITHAKNMEF1E
the chief executive of the Company for the years are as follows: U
Retirement
Salaries and benefit scheme
Directors’ fee other allowances Others* contributions Total
EZHe FEREMRR Hitr* BIMBRIGEIMER /it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT
For the year ended 30 June 2013 HZ20135F6A30R L FE
Name of director EEFHE
Mr. Wong Pak Ming HRBLE - 1,800 - - 1,800
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina BhLL - 600 - 15 615
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond HTELE - 600 800 15 1,415
Mr. Lam Kam Tong MRELA 80 - - - 80
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk BRELE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence BRSEE 80 - - - 80
240 3,000 800 30 4,070
Retirement
Salaries and benefit scheme
Directors' fee  other allowances Others* contributions Total
ESHE o REMRE Hi RINEFFT BT At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ201256A30A LEE
Name of director EFNE
Mr. Wong Pak Ming BRBLE - - 2,800 = 2,800
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina BhRRT - 220 - 10 230
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond HTEELE - 208 619 10 837
- 48 3419 20 3,867
& Others comprises of actor and executive producer fee paid to Richel * H B IERBE20134F 2012556 A30H IEFE

Corporative Limited (“Richel”) in which Mr. Wong Pak Ming, a director
of the Company, has controlling interest and script writing fee paid to
EC Production House in which Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond, a director
of the Company, has controlling interest during the year ended 30 June
2013 and 2012.

No emoluments of chief executive disclosed as the Group has no
appointment of chief executive during the year ended 30 June
2013 and 2012.

%t FRichel Corporation Limited ([Richel] = Z<
AREEFEBEENZARIEA ZRER) B
HE REEER KT FEC Production House
(RRRIEFETFEAEENZ A REEIERERS)
RREIE A -

MR AEBENEE2013F K% 20126 A30R L FE
WARZAEITHARE, - ML ERBRTHAROHE -
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13.

92

Directors’, chief executive’s and 13. EE - THAREKESMS (E)
employees’ emoluments (continued)

Employees ==
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, the number of AEBREESHFATEY  EEEREENAHD
directors and employees were as follows: TS 8
2013 2012
20134 20124
Directors = 3 2
Employees B8 2 3
5 5
The remuneration of the directors of the Company are set out RRRIEZEMERN EXEHT - A T ATHBE N
above. The emoluments of the remaining individuals were as T
follows:
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Salaries and other allowances e R E M ERL 1,190 975
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFFT B AR 26 31
1,216 1,006
The emoluments were within the following band: Bl T 5 E R A BT
2013 2012
20134 20124
Less than HK$ 1,000,000 1K 1,000,0007T 2 3
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any FR AEBBERFAESIAEEZaHAT
of the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including (BEESERES) IHME  EARS|IHEMAK
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining EBRFNMARNEBRNEZR S (ELBERAEE - &
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. Neither any of Z£2013F K201266A30R IEFE - BiEmEMES
the directors waived any emoluments for the years ended 30 June MEWEERIE S

2013 and 2012.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

Dividends 14. BRE
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 30 June ARABIREZE2013F6 A308 IEFE I AR IK sk E
2013, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the AR S - B B R AR R DA PRI R 2
reporting period (2012: nil). FHEARRE (20124 « &) -
Earnings per share 15. BRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to RATHEB AEGEERERBF TIREEIA T SET
owners of the Company is based on the following data: "
2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Earnings BEF|
Profit for the year attributable to owners of TESREARBAEARAT]
the Company for the purposes of BB ANEEFE R
basic earnings per share 19,144 20,981
Number of shares BRHEBE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for  5HE &% E A & F #) I EA%
the purpose of basic earnings per share D58 365,794,114 297,029,703

The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share for the years ended 30 June 2012
and 2013 had been adjusted retrospectively assuming that the
Reorganisation and the capitalisation, as mentioned in note 2 and
note 28 respectively, has been effective from 1 July 2011.

No diluted earnings per share are presented for the years as there
were no potential ordinary shares outstanding.

BETEREZE2012F K2013F6 A30B EFEFK
HAZF TERHBERBREEARENE (5
Bl Gn BT 2 K MY 5E28AT i) B20114F7 A1 H A K
BB AE -

A VE BB AR INRE
5 GREERAAN -

BITBERNSFEE
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For the year ended 30 June 2013 & ZE20136F6 A30H ILFE

16. Property, plant and equipment

16. Y%  BMEKRZRE

Leasehold Furniture, fixtures Computer
improvements  and equipment  Motor vehicles equipment Total
BERE  GRRERRE A8 BB At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BETT BB
cost AR
At 1 July 2011 R2011ETR18 1,069 17 = 279 1,465
Additions AE - 10 - 184 194
At 30 June 2012 12012467308 1,069 127 = 463 1,659
Additions e 22 4 1,301 78 1,405
At 30 June 2013 M2013%6H30A 1,091 131 1,301 541 3,064
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 July 2011 R20114%7R18 362 38 - 30 430
Provided for the year FREHE 214 25 = 81 320
At 30 June 2012 1201246 A308 576 63 = m 750
Provided for the year FRAEE 215 25 131 104 475
At 30 June 2013 1R2013F6A308 791 88 131 215 1,225
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 30 June 2013 1R2013F6A308 300 43 1,170 326 1,839
At 30 June 2012 72012464308 493 64 - 352 909

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Computer equipment
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e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

17. Film rights and film production in progress 17.

BRIRAR R TR

Film production

Film rights in progress
BohiE SHERER
HK$'000 HK$'000
PR T IT PR T IT
COST B AR
At 1 July 2011 ®2011E7818 60,622 36,378
Additions* NE * - 171,362
Interest capitalised in film production in progress BEREZHNENMEF B - 224
Transfer R 85,778 (85,778)
At 30 June 2012 1201246 A30H 146,400 122,186
Additions* NE* - 56,229
Transfer g 151,747 (151,747)
At 30 June 2013 201396 H30H 298,147 26,668
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BiEORE
At 1 July 2011 M2011%F7H1H 56,792 -
Charged for the year FANZH 81,048 =
At 30 June 2012 12012496 A30H 137,840 -
Charged for the year FNZH 127,066 =
At 30 June 2013 201346 A30H 264,906 -
CARRYING AMOUNTS fREE
At 30 June 2013 20136 A30H 33,241 26,668
At 30 June 2012 20126 A30H 8,560 122,186
* ANE [Z 7 #971,0007T (20124F : ##7,026,000

The additions for the current year of HK$971,000 (2012:HK$7,026,000)
and the carrying amounts of HK$7,997,000 (2012: HK$7,026,000) as

at 30 June 2013, represented the Group’s share of film production in

progress relating to film rights which is jointly controlled by the Group

and an independent third party in the PRC.

JL) MR B R R2013F6A30B MR E BB K

7,997,0007T (20124 : &

#7,026,0007T)

BA

SERIEAASEEREBTE =77 KRZEH

ERBIA

BRIRIE
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18.

96

Investments in film/drama production 18. REEY HARE
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Investments at cost FERKAR
— film (note i) — B (M) 19,398 -
— television programme (note ii) —ERETE (Fski) 6,150 -
— animations (note iii) —8)E (Feskiii) 10,029 =
35,577 -

The amount represents an investments in an international and
three PRC production houses for co-financing of the production of
film, television programme and animations.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group entered into
four agreements with production houses, which are independent
third parties, at a total consideration of HK$35,577,000. The
investments are governed by the relevant agreements entered
into between the Group and the production houses whereby the
Group is entitled to benefits generated from the distribution of the
related film/television programme/animations productions.

Notes:

(i) Based on the terms of the agreement signed by Pegasus Motion
Pictures Investment Limited (“PMPIL”), an indirect subsidiary of the
Company with TNC Productions Limited (“TNC"), an amount of
US$2,500,000 (equivalent to HK$19,398,000) was invested and
will be fully repaid to PMPIL upon the commencement of principal
photography of the film tentatively scheduled to take place in August
2013 or upon the close of bank financing tentatively scheduled to take
place before November 2013, whichever occurs earlier. In addition,
PMPIL is entitled to a return of 20% of the investment amount upon
the theatrical release of the relevant film in the United States of
America tentatively scheduled to take place in 2014 and a certain
percentage of the profit to be derived from the release of the film
worldwide in any media and in any format. As a security, TNC creates a
pledge in favor of PMPIL for another international film to be launched
by TNC, which shall be exercisable in the event that the principal
photography of the film does not commence by 30 November 2013 or
if the production of the film is abandoned, PMPIL is entitled to exercise
its right prior to 31 December 2013.

Pursuant to an announcement of the Company dated 13 September
2013, PMPIL and TNC agreed in writing to extend the date for TNC
to start principal photography of the film to 30 April 2014. As a
result, the date before which PMPIL could exercise its right to seek full
repayment under the agreement has been extended to 31 May 2014.
In addition, in the event that the principal photography of the film
does not commence by 30 April 2014 or if the production of the film
is abandoned, PMPIL is entitled to exercise its rights prior to 31 May
2014 seek full recoupment from another international film as additional
security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Investments in film/drama production
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii) Based on the terms of the agreement signed by Pegasus Motion
Pictures Production Limited (“PMPPL”), an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, an amount of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$6,150,000)
was invested and will be fully repaid to the PMPPL on or before 21
March 2014. In addition, PMPPL is entitled to a minimum rate of return
at 20% per annum and share of profit generated from the distribution
of the related television programme based on the percentage of capital
invested into the production of television programme.

(iif) Based on the terms of two agreements signed by 1t 5K, an indirect
subsidiary of the Company, amounts of RMB4,160,000 and RMB3,993,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$5,117,000 and HK$4,912,000) was
invested and will be fully repaid to 362K on 13 May 2014 and 13 June
2014, respectively. In addition, 3tK S5 is entitled to a minimum rate of
return at 10% per annum on the principal amount and share of profit
generated from the distribution of the related animation productions based
on the percentage of capital invested into the production of animation
productions.

Since the principal amount of investments is expected to
be recouped by the Group within one year, the amount of
HK$35,577,000 is classified as current assets at 30 June 2013.

The investments in film/drama production contain embedded
derivatives which are not closely related to the host contract. The
debt components of the investments in film/drama production are
measured at amortised cost subsequent to initial recognition. At
initial recognition and 30 June 2013, the fair value of embedded
derivatives is considered insignificant.

The Group’s investments in film/drama production that are not

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

18. REBY HEIRE (H)

M - ()

(ii) BREARAHEENBLARAREEZRIEARA A
([REEREE]) FBFTNRBEER  —FEAR
#5,000,0007T (F#E R E#6,150,0007T) BE &
ﬁ%%EH%HAZOMfRHN Az AT BEEE TR

SEERE - N AEBEEREZAETFRR
zo%aﬁ@aﬁ&% g jz&if'&%zﬁﬁﬁa H1Z & LBl o
IEBATHER B AR AN B E A RRT o

(iif) REAAAMENBARLRREAETNME
W IER - WED B R ARK4,160,000T R AR
#3,993,0007T (48 % M #9748 #5,117,0007T & %
#4,912,0007T) HERE S FE D RIR201455
A13B R2014F6 A13ABHEEFIERKRE -
AN AR REZERSEEFHIE10%H) B ]
R WREEHENRELHIDIGEITIHADE
BUEEERRT -

BHRERREEGR - FARBEERS - MK
35,577,0007T M £ FEMN 2013566 A30H SRR

REBY /BESERERISHNTER I BRE
BIRARSTETR - REBF /BB SENER

D TRV TR B R AG & - RYTHER
20136 H30H - RARITET AN R T EHRE
A eE

AEEWIFARAEEERBOINGEEEHENRE

denominated in the functional currencies of the relevant group BY BBIEENT
entities are as follows:
2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BB
usD ETT 19,398 -
RMB AREE 6,150 -
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19. Trade and other receivables 19.

The aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net of
allowance for doubtful debts, based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

B2 RHEABEWRIE

R|EDR - AEEE 5 RUIR (R R IR B
) RERBHNRESITAT

2013 2012
2013%F 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade receivables: Z S EWGRIA
0 - 30 days 0£30H 10,794 4,795
31 - 60 days 31£60H 402 585
61— 90 days 61290H 2,438 -
91 - 180 days 91£180H 420 -
181 — 365 days 1812365H 3,496 -
17,550 5,380
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments (Note) EfthfEURIE - i£& K&
FaftsRIE (Fiah) 6,724 173
24,274 5,553

Generally no credit period is granted to the Group’s customers.
Distribution and licensing fee from distributors in Hong Kong, the
PRC and overseas countries are normally settled upon delivery
of film negatives to them. On a case-by-case basis, one to two
months of credit period may be granted to its customers.

These trade receivables relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good repayment history. Included in the
Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$6,354,000 (2012: nil) as at 30 June 2013
which are past due as at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral or credit enhancements over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

AEE-—RUEAEZFEOEMEES - BRE
B RERESINBEIREITEABEITRBITEER
AEABATRAREINELIENESBEE - K
SEAZAREERNEEPRE —EMEAANGEE
H -

ZEB SRR IERSZ AEBRITERCENE L
BEEH - AEBEE S EWFIBLHBIENR2013F
6 A30H Bk 4218 7% #6,354,0007T (20124 : £&)
REMERE - MRS A aEREE &I
FIRBEBEEE AEETERZSEKRITEML
{RJ 4 dp SRER R (= B SR 1A 16 o

ERMEYARRENE S EURKIBNRE ST

2013 2012

20135 20124

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BB

61 — 90 days 61£90H 2,438 =
91 - 180 days 91£180H 420 -
181 — 365 days 181%365H 3,496 =
6,354 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

Trade and other receivables (continued) 19. EFRHEMEWRKIE (F)
The management of the Group believes that no impairment AEBEEERR BN EERBITESKEFHE
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there have HER DGR REWE - EBARZEERETIRA
not been a significant change in credit risk and the balances are BEE -
still considered fully recoverable.
The Group’s trade and other receivables that are not denominated in REBUEEEEERAEEBUINEEHENE
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as follows: S REMBEYRIELT ¢
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
RMB AR 11,708 -
usb e 6,192 270
Note:  Included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments was an amount foeE . HebEWEIE - 2e REMRERIER2013F6
of HK$6,210,000 (2012: nil) which the Group paid to an independent A30BAEBARREF—AFREBAERAEUE
third party in the PRC on behalf of one of the PRC co-producers of a TRERBNR —HEEPEZATBRBLE=
film production in progress for film production purpose. The amount is 7 =47 #6,210,0007T (20124 : &) HI5KIE ©
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. ZAEREER 2R RIRERERER -
o =
20. Prepayment to an artiste 20. ENEERE
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Non-current portion FERNEREL 30,000 30,000
Current portion BNERER 7> 10,000 10,000
40,000 40,000

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group entered into a
contract with an artiste for his participation in nine of the Group’s
film productions at a total contract fee of HK$48,000,000 with
a contract term of six years from 2010 to 2016. During the year
ended 30 June 2013, the contract term is mutually agreed to be
extended to eight years from 2010 to 2018.

The Group’s management anticipates that the artiste would
participate in one to two film productions of the Group each year
and therefore, based on the service fee schedule of the artiste for
each film stated in the contract, an amount of HK$10,000,000
(2012: HK$10,000,000) was classified as current assets and
the remaining carrying amount of HK$30,000,000 (2012:
HK$30,000,000) was classified as non-current assets as at 30 June
2013.

HZE2010F6A30B L FE - AEEHE—ZHEEG
H2HAEENNBEZRET LAY  BENE
A & 7 48,000,000 © & 4 #2010 £2016
FEAEENE - BE2013F6A30RLLFE - €51
FEREAHE - H20105EE2018F AH/\F -

AEBERERY  ZEEHRSFR2EAEEN
—MIMBEZRAIE - Bt - REBESHFETHZ
BEE2HEGHETHNRBEEREK  M201356A
308 © £ % A% %10,000,0007T (20124 : B #&
10,000,0007T) R EH B ARBEAE A THRE
B 7 ¥30,000,0007T (20124 : 7 #30,000,000
L) BID B RIEREEE °
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20. Prepayment to an artiste (continued) 20. BMMEERIE (&)
During the year ended 30 June 2013, the artiste had not B 2201356 A30H ILFE - BARNZIEBMiEEHE
participated or completed any film production for the Group due REERAFENEZHBERRRLTES - 28
to the availability of the artiste not match with the films shooting B ARSENTERASEEAELRUE (2012¢ :
timetable of the Group in the current year (2012: one film). —EBEF) ©
21. Amounts due from/to related companies 21. W ENEEE A TIRIE
(@) Details of amounts due from related companies are (a) MEWEEH QA BRFIENFEBOT -
as follows:
Maximum outstanding
amount during the year
FREEHAEESH
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 20124 2013%F 2012%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT
Related company YN
REFH A (R REFHRAA (IER)
BRAR(REFE (%)) BRAR (TR (L)) - 341 341 22,944
PM Motion Pictures Limited AEEZHRARAR - 1 1 10,277
- 342
(b) Details of amounts due to related companies are as (b) EEEATRKENGEBTUOT :
follows:
2013 2012
20134 2012%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
PM Motion Pictures Limited BEZLRBRA 3,235 1,702
Chili Advertising & Promotions Limited (“Chili”) Ch||| Advertising & Promotions
Limited ([ Chili]) 100 -
3,335 1,702
Members of the key management of the Group have controlling REEXZEREKSHBZZ BN B ZEARE
interest over these related companies. oo
The amounts due from related companies were unsecured, U AR IR AEIEHF - 28 WEREZE
interest-free and fully settled during the year ended 30 June 2013. 201356 A30H ILFEREEE -
The amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest- EREBARREBEAEERR RERERERE
free and repayable on demand. & ©
100  Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012/13



21.

(b)

22,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe WIS

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

Amounts due from/to related companies 21. U ~FE{JREE A RIFIE (&)
(continued)
Details of amounts due to related companies are as (b) EEBEATRENFHBOT : (&)
follows: (continued)
The Group’s amounts due from related companies that are not AEBEAEEEE BRI EBAINEETENE
denominated in the functional currencies of the relevant group W RAEE A RIFIEAT
entities are as follows:
2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
RVB AR - 341
The Group’s amounts due to related companies that are not AEBUEBEERERAEEEUINEEAERNE
denominated in the functional currencies of the relevant group T REEE A B ZIE R ¢
entities are as follows:
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
USD £ 998 -
RMB ANRHEE 2,159 1,702
Pledged bank deposit 22. WITEFFER

As at 30 June 2013, the amount represented a bank deposit of
HK$30,055,000 pledged to a bank to secure short-term banking
facilities granted to the Group and carried interest at a fixed rate
of 0.45% per annum. The pledged bank deposit was matured on
24 September 2013.

The amount is denominated in the functional currency of the

respective group entity.

201356 A30H  Z KB MRITEIFNRITF
75 #30,055,0007T  {EEAE E M H A EK
W28 BARTASEMNREHRTRE K
o WIRE FEFK0.45%5H B o ZRITEBER
ER2013569H24B 38 -

ZR AR EE RN EREE -
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23. Bank balances and cash 23.

Bank balances and cash of the Group carry interest at market rates

which are as follows:

RITHERRRAE

AEBRITEBRRBSIE TSRS

2013
20135

2012
20124

Interest rate per annum FE R =

0.01% t0 0.38% 0.01% to 0.3%
0.01%%£0.38% 0.01%%0.3%

The Group's bank balances and cash that are not denominated

AEBAHBEEEERINE

EHUAINEEETENR

in the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as THEARRSWT :
follows:
2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
AUD BT 15 117
RMB AR 88 51
usD EH 1,315 4,184

24. Trade and other payables/receipts in 24.

EZRAMENRE,FEKRKRE

advance

2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade payable (note 1) B SN FRIE (MiEE1) - 300
Other payables and accruals (note 2) Hib e IERERTER (Misk2) 6,600 2,940
Deposits received (note 3) Bz (FiEE3) 1,250 =
7,850 3,240
Receipts in advance (note 4) TalRIE (i) 9,251 85,953
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24. Trade and other payables/receipts in
advance (continued)

(1) At 30 June 2012, the trade payable was aged within 30 days.

2) Included in other payables were (i) accrued expenses of HK$1,515,000
(2012: HK$1,133,000) as at 30 June 2013; (ii) contribution from an
independent third party in the PRC of HK$1,474,000 for its share of
50% interest in film production in progress as at 30 June 2012, which
was settled during the year; (iii) accrued interest of HK$333,000 (2012:
HK$333,000) as at 30 June 2013 on a loan financing with a principal
of RMB5,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,512,000) from an
independent third party. The independent third party was entitled to a
return which was determined as a percentage of the profit generated
by a specific film over a year from the commencement of the theatrical
release in Hong Kong which was payable six months and twelve
months from the date of theatrical release. Other than the accrued
interest of HK$333,000, the principal and interest were fully settled
during the year ended 30 June 2012; (iv) production cost payables for
film rights and film production in progress of HK$2,769,000 (2012: nil)
as at 30 June 2013; and (v) payables for copyrights acquired for film
production in progress amounted to HK$1,525,000 (2012: nil) as at 30
June 2013.

(3) Deposits received represented the deposits received from a cinema
circuit operator in Hong Kong for a film to be theatrical release in Hong
Kong during the Chinese New Year in early 2014.

(4) Included in receipts in advance were the instalments of contribution
from the PRC co-producers for film production in progress and advances
of distribution and licensing income received from distributors prior to
theatrical release and delivery of film negatives of HK$9,251,000 (2012:
HK$85,953,000) as at 30 June 2013.

The Group’s trade and other payables that are not denominated in the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are as follows:

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

2. EFRHEMENRKE AKRKE
(&)

(1) M201266A30H © B 5 B K IAMERE A30K
ﬁq °

) H it & 1 5118 B 45 () 2013F 6 A30 8 &9 FE 51 1
% % ®1,515,0007C (20124 = # #1,133,000
JL) ¢ (iDR2012F6 A30R R BB 55 = A st &
JE {5 BLYE AR ER250% 1 &= (H & B 161,474,0007T
ERAFEARLZA : (iii)R2013F6 A308 BB L
E=FMENARETERARES5,500,0007T (FHE
A AEHE6,512,0007T) B E K RVE FESHFE A
#333,0007T (20124 : # #333,0007T) ° % 32
E=FBREMER  FHEeEE - PHFEEEY
AT BB bt L R 5T — & N AT A& i 7 Y
BOLERE - BRERHKEEE BT SEA R+
ZEAAXZM o Bk R FS A #333,0007T 5 -
RERFEEREZE20126F6A308 L FEEH
838 : (iVR2013F6 A308 M E Mt R &L EH
B 5 JE 1 B 1E K AR #2,769,0007T (20124 -
) R(v)R2013F6 A308 MM i RUER B AR
T JE (< FRIE S #61,525,0007T (20124F « f#) ©

3) B USRS 558 R 201 44 1) BT B & 31 4F BARS 72
EETGBBRHN —HEXERETEEX L RES

(4) 2013566 HA308 - MR EREHEABEEA
R EERBHAIEL KD B & & #2 B i A
BB AT R A BT R BT AT AT A TR R
B RN EZIENE R H%9,251,0007T (2012
F : 75185,953,0007T) °

WARAEBEEER 2 NEERAENTIEEE S
N EAERRIBANT -

2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T R T
RMB AR 4,151 =
usb T 776 =
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25.

26.

104

Amount due to a director 25. BENESERE
At 30 June 2012, the amount represented the advance from R2012F6A308 ' EARIEEARAEEER
a director of the Company, Mr. Wong Pak Ming, who is also a IBEE (MARRDRIRER) BBR - ZRIBRER
shareholder of the Company. The amount was unsecured, interest- A 2ERITEETERY - ZHIBEEIESHE
free and had no fixed terms of repayment. The amount was non- BRIEE - WHARMN2013F10A58 R A 7] A7 B
trade balance in nature and was eventually capitalised as share AT LA R EARBA R BRANRRDEE
capital and share premium of the Company on 5 October 2013,
before the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange.
The amount was denominated in the functional currency of the ZHEAEESEE R EEE -
respective group entities.
Unsecured bank borrowing 26. EEWEBITER
2013 2012
20135 20124F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Bank loan IRITER - 1,957
Carrying amount of bank borrowing that contain ~ EHZZKEE ERH
a repayable on demand clause: RATERAAREE :
— repayable within one year — BR—FERNEE - 854
— repayable after one year from the end of — ARG HRE—FEEE
the reporting period (shown under (MREaEET~2%))
current liabilities) - 1,103
Amounts shown under current liabilities mEAEET 2N - 1,957

The bank loan was repayable by monthly instalments from July
2009 to August 2014, based on scheduled payment dates set out
in the loan agreement.

The bank loan was guaranteed by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the Small and
Medium Enterprises Loan Guarantee Scheme and under personal
guarantees of the directors of the Company. The bank loan was
fully settled during the year ended 30 June 2013.

The bank loan carried interests at Prime Rate of Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited plus 0.9% per annum. The effective interest
rate (which were also equal to contracted interest rates) per
annum are as follows:

ZRTERARBERGHEABOAENKARA
20097 AE2014F8 Atz A n HifEE -

ZRITEFRER D EEERBTEHET SRR
THEBFRARREZESENEAEREERR - R17T
EREREZE2013F6 A30H L FERHEE -

RITEFRFPERT (BB) BRAFAREERNE
M0.9%:t B - ERFHME (MERAHME) !
T

2013 2012
20134 20124
Effective interest rate BERF=X - 5.9%

The Group’s bank borrowing was denominated in the functional
currency of the respective group entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred tax asset

The followings are the deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised
by the Group and the movements thereon during the current and
prior years.

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

27. EEHBEEE

AEERAFERBEFEERBNREEHRIREE
(BfE) REZHMT :

Accelerated tax

Tax loss depreciation Total
TiIEEE IRFIETE #mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PSR T BRI SR T
At 1 July 2011 and 30 June 2012 R2011F7H18 K
20126 A30H = = =
Credit (charge) to profit or loss for the year R A (454) a5 187 (88) 99
At 30 June 2013 74201346 A308 187 (88) 99

Under the Law on Enterprise Income Tax, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
the PRC subsidiary from 1 January 2008 onwards. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiary for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised in these consolidated financial
statements amounted to approximately HK$869,000 (2012:
nil) as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$1,136,000 (2012: nil) available for offsetting
against future profits of which a deferred tax asset has been
recognised. The unused tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

BRI EREHE - P ENE R A 220084
TAVB R BHEAENTEIRAKREEMMANTER
i BALEPEMBARNAD KA BENE
B A8 284 B 75 15869,0007T (20124F = ) WARR
IS AR AR - RESARD RS 5 5 B R =
R RZEREB AR A TE R ARREE -

MR2013F6A308 ' AEBEEARTAHREEELB
#1,136,0007T (20124F : &) - Al {RIKSH D MRIE
FEFATHE B KR 2R 0m ) o AR Eh A A TE S 18 ] £ 1R HR
i o
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28. Share capital/capital

28. BRAE EX

Number of shares  Share capital

RGEE &R
HK$'000
BEET T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: FREHE0.01 T BN ¢
Authorised EE
On 8 March 2012 (date of incorporation) and 201293 A8H (A HER)
at 30 June 2012 (note i) K#201266 A308 (P&t 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised share capital (note ii) SETE RSN (BT i) 7,962,000,000 79,620
At 30 June 2013 720136 A30H 8,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
Issue of a share on 8 March 2012 7201263 A8 (FMAKIZBH)
(date of incorporation) and at 30 June 2012 BITHIR D K R201296 H30H
(note i) (Bf=Ei) 1 -
Issued pursuant to Reorganisation (note iii) IREEA TR (BT 9,999 =
Issued upon the loan capitalisation (note iv) BERER TR (FsEiv) 100 =
Issue of shares upon capitalisation issue (note v) BEAR(CEITEITIR D
(BfaEv) 299,989,900 3,000
Issue of new shares (note vi) AT (FdEvi) 100,000,000 1,000
At 30 June 2013 72013496 A30H 400,000,000 4,000

At 30 June 2012, the capital represents the aggregate share capital
of the Company, Green Riches, Pegasus Motion Pictures Production
Limited, Pegasus Motion Pictures (Hong Kong) Limited, Pegasus
Motion Pictures Distribution Limited, Star Pictures Entertainment
(Hong Kong) Limited and Star Pictures Entertainment Limited of
HK$0.01, US$1 (equivalent to approximately HK$8), HK$1, HK$1,
US$1 (equivalent to approximately HK$8), HK$10,000 and US$1
(equivalent to approximately HK$8), respectively.

Notes:

(i) The Company was incorporated with an authorised share capital
of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares with a par value
of HK$0.01 each and one nil-paid subscriber share at par value of
HK$0.01 was issued to Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited. The
share was transferred to Mr. Wong on the same day. On 15 March
2012, the one nil-paid subscriber share was transferred from Mr. Wong

to Honour Grace.
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2012566 A30H « BRI D Hl /E¥0.017T » 1
ET (HERABEESIT) - BE1T - BT 1
FEIT (HERABKESIT) - ##10,0007T R1E T
(FAERLBEST) KAAR - B - KEEFHR
EBRAR s XREEFHm () ARAA - X
FEXRTARAD - EMRE (FF) BRAA
R EMIREFR A RIMRABIE

FEE

(i) AR B LAY TE IR 45 78 #5380,0007T i AR 32 -
fi% 78 5 %38,000,000% & A% E (& 4 #50.017T &Y
f& 5 + I MCodan Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited iR E B #50.01 T E 1T —BRARBAR KR
ARG - ZRHREBEZRETELTE - 7K2012
F3A158  Z—RABBRABEARN HELE
BRETHRE -
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29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Share capital/capital (continued)

(ii) Pursuant to the written resolutions of the then sole shareholder of the
Company passed on 5 October 2012, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to HK$80,000,000 by
the creation of a further 7,962,000,000 ordinary shares with a nominal
value of HK$0.01 each.

(iii) On 5 October 2012, the Company acquired the entire issued share
capital of Green Riches from Honour Grace in consideration of which
the Company allotted and issued 9,999 fully paid up shares to Honour
Grace and credited as fully paid at par the one nil-paid subscriber share
then held by Honour Grace. After the share transfer, Green Riches
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(iv) On 5 October 2012, the directors of the Company were authorised to
capitalise a loan due from the Company to Mr. Wong, in an aggregate
sum of HK$50,000,000 by the allotment and issue of 100 shares
to Honour Grace (at the direction of Mr. Wong) at an aggregate
subscription price of HK$50,000,000.

(v) On 31 October 2012, the Company capitalised an amount of
HK$2,999,899 standing to the credit of its share premium account to
allot and issue 299,989,900 shares credited as fully paid to Honour
Grace.

(vi) On 31 October 2012, the Company issued 100,000,000 shares
pursuant to the Company’s listing on the Stock Exchange by way of
placing at a price of HK$0.90 per share.

Share-based payment transactions
Share option scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
approved and adopted by the Sole Shareholder on 5 October
2012 for the primary purpose to grant options to eligible persons
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may,
at its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Scheme to the
directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors), employees, advisors
and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries who the
Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group (the “Participants”).

28.

29.

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

BA&EX (F)

(i) BRIEARD A E R M —RRN2012F10A58 @
BOEERER © AARMNEERAFEE SR
FAXEEA0.017018787,962,000,0000% & i@ %
5+ B7&%380,0007TE £ % #80,000,0007T °

(iif) 2012610850 » AARIMKRBKERR 2
BEETRAE  RERAREMEERERET
9,999 B R AR - WG R B E KR A K —IRARE
RAREARBREEARINARE - RRHE
BiE - BRKARARRENBARF ©

(iv) M2012610A5H - EFHEEABREEEE
50,000,0007C MK B (R&E L EMETR) B R
HIT100MRAR 1D + AR BB HE LS LB
50,000,000 T BRI E AR -

(v) 20126108318 + A A #1798 AR /93 AR
SFEE52,999,899 BT ER - ARIKBRER
#%17299,989,900/% A BR%I| B4 R MUAR D ©

(vi) R20129F 108318 © AR AR EA A 8 R EE R
T EmM AR E 5 IR T RAME0.90TT MBS EAT
100,000,000 A% 15 °

UGB RERNTRNRS
BRErE

7R T Y B AR S B0 (T323H 1)) R2012481085
RN — IR RALE IR T EHMARAERA
B IR (R A S M B R S
KEHR -

RIEZAE - RARESFSARBEREZEME
ERBRYEAKEERLBELERNARAR
HBARMES (BRERTES  FUATESER
BYFRTES) REE BERLKFHAAL (28
&) BHEAE -

KEIRGIRAR AT ~ 2012113 Fk 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A

ire B SRR T T

For the year ended 30 June 2013 & ZE20136F6 A30H ILFE

29.

30.

108

Share-based payment transactions 29. URPBEBNGROIRS (&)
(continued)
Share option scheme (continued) BRESTE (F)
The total numbers of shares in respect of which options may be EHAARRRIRES A AENBRT  RIEZTE
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the AR E BB IRE S RO BB TS HBBRA R
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior EREEITROMNI0% - EHAERNNGREE LU
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares ERERT - RER—FREREMA TR RA
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and BER H VBB AR P VAR 1) 8L B NS EBR AR A
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted EREEITRANTI% °
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years ZETEIB20126F10 A5 EBEF T FANAE M © %5l
commencing on 5 October 2012. Options granted during the BRI B0 B AR AR IR % IR TR AT A B T AAT
life of the Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance o TRERAARERETE ATEERUAT=
with their terms of grant. The exercise price is determined by the ENRSE  ()VRAELEH (BWEARSH) BT
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of NS R RERARBRHTE : (NBEKLRE
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation A AR S AR EN TR RERMTRA
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, FHRTE - R)AATRNDEE - REERERE
which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the & - 2EEAMAQBZAEL.00T - ERER
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock ERERNNRE - ERENEMIRARLERES B
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the #BEFT28H o
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
Upon acceptance of the option, the Participants shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company by way of consideration for the grant. The option
will be offered for acceptance for a period of 28 days from the
date of grant.
As at 30 June 2013, there were no options granted under the B 2201356 308 - AR AIBEIRIEZ AT & H
Scheme by the Company. AR i -
Operating lease commitments 30. REBEERE
The Group as lessee AEBEEREAEA
2013 2012
20134 20124F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Minimum lease payments under operating leases HAR&E ST EIR
during the period: SEBERMZK
Premises S 1,354 1,284
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31.

0)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

Operating lease commitments (continued) 30. K&HERIE (&)
The Group as lessee (continued) REBEEREBEA (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had committed for REBEBR - ANEERET A BEHC S ERED
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating HE&ERAERFHEIBERAT
leases which fall due as follows:
2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Within one year —FR 1,072 1,021
In the second year F_F 771 90
1,843 1,111
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for the CEHENRERLAERRAEWEREMNAS -
Group’s office premises. Leases are negotiated for a term of two HELEBAEMT MEASREBEEEZEHAE
years and rentals are fixed throughout the lease period. JE °
Retirement benefit plans 31. EAKREFEE
Plans for Hong Kong employees (i) HBEHEEBEENTI

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of trustees. Under the rule of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the MPF Scheme.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

The contribution to the MPF Scheme is calculated based on the
rules set out in the MPF Ordinance which is 5% on the basic salary
of the relevant employee subject to a specific ceiling of HK$1,250
(HK$1,000 before 1 June 2012).

AEERBBHMEIESTERPISEMBURE
BONEERERERY —BBGHIERATRESFE (187
Z&tE)) - BESHBNEEEARBEED T
B BSBXFEARG - RGBS E M IED
B xR E R B RIRIRGIEE R LL I M ET &I 5K -
AEBEHRESHENE-TEDRERBESE
TR P A5 (R o I 8 SR RE R FRA AU AR 2R 4R 2
FERHHAR -

RS B E TR IR R E S EHI=F 808 Al
FTE - HREHEEEERTSMN5% A EE
1,2507t (2012456 A1 H AT &A% 1,0007T) %€ £
PR A PR i o
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31.

(if)

32.

110

Retirement benefit plans
Plans for PRC employees

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiary is required to contribute a certain
percentage of its payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions

under the scheme.

The total cost of HK$386,000 (2012: HK$184,000) charged to
profit or loss represents contributions paid or payable to the above
schemes by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013.

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 16 January 2013, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital in PMPIL from Mr. Wong, a director of the Company, for
cash consideration of HK$1.

PMPIL is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong on
8 February 2012 and did not commence business since its
incorporation. At the date of acquisition, the sole asset of PMPIL

represented an amount due from a shareholder of HK$1.

The cash outflow on acquisition of the subsidiary is HK$1.
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ET AL REREN L HR - REHER
Ag o AEBEBUR KRN 800 M — B R
EIEH TR LR -

5B 25 BN 48 BR 7R 8 386,000 (20124 : 8
184,0007T) EAREBREE2013F6 A30B ILEFE
M) bt 5+ 8132 A sk e A A9 R 3K o

W BB K B A F)
RK2013F 18168 ' AEEUBR S REBE1TRH
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N o
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Related party disclosures

Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following significant (i)

transactions with related parties:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

33. BABAEE

n =xu

FRN - AEBEBRBEB AL NIEARS :

Name of related parties Notes  Nature of transaction 2013 2012
2yt Mz XBMH 20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
PM Motion Pictures Limited (a) Service income 1,974 1,356
E?;uuj uuﬁﬁEL\ A HE%”&()\
Pegasus Laboratory (International) Limited (b) Loan receivable interest
(“Pegasus Laboratory”) income - 31
REHED (BIER) BRAR ([REHEN]) FEWTE R S A
Film processing services fee 2,211 1,942
BRIEMAEN RIS &
Pure Project Limited (@} Rental expense 360 360
Pure Project Limited HeMx
Prime Moon International Limited (d) Co-ordinator and
(“Prime Moon") producer fee - 225
Prime Moon International Limited HAARRAEER
(T'Prime Moon )
Chili (e) Advertising and promotion services fee 1,304 799
Chili BEREFREER
REFE (AER) (f) Management fee 221 618
REFH (JtR) EEE
MMKRB R U BR AT ("IMKRE") (9) Management fee 148 36
MMRE AU BR AT ([FMNKE]) EIRE
Wong Yee Kwan Alvina (h) Loan interest expense - 28
=R BERFERX
Starbright Communications Limited (i) Loan interest expense
(“Starbright”) - 11
Starbright Communications Limited BExFERX
([starbright])
EC Production House G Script writing fee 800 619
EC Production House wEIEA
Richel (k) Actor and executive producer fee - 2,800
Richel HERERER

KERGIAGHR A ] ~ 2012/13 F3R
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33.
0)

(i)

112

Related party disclosures (continued)
Transactions (continued)

During the year, the Group entered into the following significant
transactions with related parties: (continued)

Notes:

(a) The service income was received from PM Motion Pictures Limited
for the Group’s provision of film distribution services. The Controlling
Shareholders, all being the directors of the Company, collectively have
controlling interest over this company.

(b) The film processing services fee was paid to Pegasus Laboratory in
which it is beneficiary owned by a company collectively controlled by
the Controlling Shareholders at 30 June 2012 and 2013.

The loan interest income was received from Pegasus Laboratory for the
loan receivable from Pegasus Laboratory in which the loan receivable
had been fully settled during the year ended 30 June 2012.

(a] The rental expenses was paid to Pure Project Limited for the office
premise leased by the Group. Mr. Wong has controlling interests in
Pure Project Limited.

(d) The co-ordinator and producer fee was paid to Prime Moon, a company
in which Ms. Wong Kit Chun, the sister of Mr. Wong has controlling
interest.

(e) The advertising and promotion services fee was paid to Chili in which
Mr. Lam Sze Ho Owen (the spouse of Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina), has
controlling interest in Chili for the period from 1 July 2011 to 15 April
2013. From 16 April 2013 onwards, Chili is owned by Ms. Wong Kit
Fong, the sister of Mr. Wong.

) The management fee was paid to K& 8 (3£ 5) in which a member
of key management of the Group has controlling interest.

(9 The management fee was paid to AT/ in which a member of key
management of the Group has controlling interest.

(h) The loan interest expense was paid to Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina for
a loan principal of HK$2,500,000, carrying an interest at 2.5% per
annum, advanced to the Group in July 2011 and the loan had been
fully settled during the year ended 30 June 2012.

(i) The loan interest expense was paid to Starbright in which Ms. Wong
Yee Kwan Alvina, has controlling interest for a loan principal of
HK$1,000,000, carrying an interest at 2.5% per annum, advanced to
the Group in July 2011 and the loan had been fully settled during the
year ended 30 June 2012.

[0} The script writing fee was paid to EC Production House in which Mr.
Wong Chi Woon Edmond has controlling interest.

(k) The actor and executive producer fee was paid to Richel in which Mr.
Wong has controlling interest.
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BaE

(a) ZRIBBA T A EBIR M ER BT RIS T
MRASEZEmERDAME - ZEREKR
(BAARNRARES) XREA QB AR

e -

(b) ZERIEMRENRIEE TS T RS HED
2R ER20124F £201346 4308 MK
R EE I — R A A A o

ZEFF BUA THH R IR 5 R B 3T
MRBHENE - B EKRERER2012
F6HA308 IEFEREEE -

(0) ZHERT IRASERENRAZTYEM
5t FPure Project Limited ° = % 4 Pure
Project Limited# B 2% #E25 o

@) EBBAREEEATE A FPrime
Moon = # % 4 Bl bR BB &+ R Z A A
e A R R 5 -

(e) ZEERMEEREE T FChili - 2R
TEHREEMRFHBEER2011F7R1BE
20134F4 815 HHARAChIlizE B =R RS -
B2013F4 516 H#£  Chilifa & % £ K MR ik
BRF LIS -

(f) ZEREDINTREZK () - A&
B-ZIEEEEKRKENZ AR EAERE

5o

(9) ZEREDMNTFMIMNKRSE - REE—RE
EEREXENZ A RIEGERER

(h) ZEFMNEAI NI AFERHLZL  EA
R2011FE7RBF FAREENERASES
#2,500,0007T @ & F F| E2.5%5F B ° 7%
ERCREE20129F6 5300 It FEBE4L

st
H o
ZAT

(i) Z B HF B R X Ty FStarbright (&
BHERTREREFERES)  EFAR
20117 B8 FAREBHNERA ST B
1,000,0007T * IRFFE2 5% 8 o ZEK
EREE201266A30R tEERHBLEE -

1) #wBIE A 4 FEC Production House -
= FIESE A BEC Production House#3%
g

(k) B MERERA Y FRichel - | AH
ARichel Corporation Limited 832 % #£25 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Related party disclosures (continued)
Transactions (continued)

At 30 June 2012, Mr. Wong and Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond
had provided guarantees to banks for banking facilities to the
extent of HK$18,000,000 granted to a subsidiary of the Company.
The guarantees had been released during the year ended 30 June
2013.

At 30 June 2012, Mr. Wong had provided guarantee to a bank
for a banking facility to the extent of HK$1,000,000 granted to
a subsidiary of the Company. The guarantee had been released
during the year ended 30 June 2013.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group had omitted
the application for the registration of two of its subsidiaries,
Pegasus Motion Pictures Distribution Limited and Star Pictures
Entertainment Limited within one month of the establishment
of the place of business as required under Part XI of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The Group is liable to a fine of
approximately HK$18,000 and Mr. Wong provided an indemnity in
full amount of the fine to be levied by the Hong Kong Companies
Registry. The fine was fully settled during the year.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Company acquired a
subsidiary, PMPIL from Mr. Wong at a consideration of HK$1.
Details are set out in note 32.

Balances
Details of the amounts due from (to) related companies and

amount due to a director are set out in the consolidated statement
of financial position and in notes 21 and 25, respectively.

33.

0

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(1

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

BAEE S T (&)

Nl
i

2N
X

20126 A30F ' EAEREFEEERKTA
NaM B AR RSB 18,000,000 T K ER1TRLE M
ZRBATREER - ZERDZNEE2013F6A30
HIEFE#RRR

M20126F6A30H » EAARBETARR —KHE
A A& & %1,000,000 T KR 1T RLE ) — KERAT
REER - ZEREREE2013F6A308 EFE
AERR ©

HZE2012F6A30BLLFE - AEEGRBEEMRK
MBARKSECETARARRERBRLEBERA
RIE R & 2R T — 8 A NIRBR BB A RHEHI S
XIEBEY R E AR ek o AN B ZAB N 498 % 18,000
THEIK - MEEBEEERESD B MR
WERESERRE - SRERNAFENEHL
it e

B E2013F6A30B L FE + KARURELE
TRELEERBEHBARKEEFILE - 5
BEE R HIFE32 ©

AHER

FEU (FERY) BB R BRI R ENEEFRIBNFIE
2RI EIAR B B AOR R TE21 ] 25 ©
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33.

(1)

114

Related party disclosures (continued) 33.

Compensation of key management personnel (I

The remuneration of directors and other key management

personnel of the Group during the year was as follows:

AEAEIE (&)
HAEXTEEEAES

FAREEEZRAMEEZETE A SR HBES 0
™

2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Salaries and other allowances e RHE 2R 7,005 542
Others* H > 800 3,419
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREHET SR 129 65
7,934 4,026
* Others comprises of actor and executive producer fee paid to Richel in * H A B FE S FRichel (R ARIEEZE LA

which Mr. Wong, a director of the Company, has controlling interest
and script writing fee paid to EC Production House in which Mr.
Wong Chi Woon Edmond, a director of the Company, has controlling

interests.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012/13
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e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

34. Statement of financial position of the 34. XA TBKEMRE

Company
At 30 June 2013 7201356 A30H
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KB AT RIRE 97,196 =
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables HAtb EUGRIA 87 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUCHT B A RIFRIE 47,169 -
Bank balances RITHEER 24,102 =
71,358 —
Current liabilities mEBaE
Other payables HAb e 5RIE (408) (571)
Amount due to a subsidiary FETHT B A RIFIR - (6,926)
(408) (7,497)
Net current assets (liabilities) mEEE (AE) FE 70,950 (7,497)
Net assets/Total assets less current liabilities BESE/BEERTBAE 168,146 (7,497)
Capital and reserve BARR
Share capital (note 28) A7 (Fff3+28) 4,000 =
Share premium and reserves (Note) Rt (8 K s (BsE) 164,146 (7,497)
168,146 (7,497)
The distributable reserve of the Company for the year ended 30 KATNEE2013F6 8308 It EE W A] 5K 7
June 2013 amounted to HK$164,146,000 (2012: no distributable 15 5 15164,146,0007T (20124 : I £ 0] 5 JF
reserve). 1) o
The amount due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free U (FEfT) MBARIZBE I EKT  ERIRE

and repayable on demand.
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34. Statement of financial

35.

116

Company (continued)

Note:

position of the 34.

RATMBARRE (F)

it

Accumulated

Share premium Special reserve losses Total
grpini-l Rl # EYay ] Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT T
At date of incorporation Rz E B = = = =
Loss for the period and total comprehensive HIREE R AR TR S A%
expenses for the period = = (7,497) (7,497)
At 30 June 2012 #20124F6 A30H = = (7,497) (7,497)
Loss for the year and total comprehensive FABERFANEEMEE
expenses for the year - - (5,238) (5,238)
Arising on Reorganisation RBEAEITRG - 47,196 - 47,196
Issue of shares upon the loan capitalisation RERERCEITRG 50,000 - - 50,000
Issue of shares upon capitalisation issue BRI EITIRGS (3,000) - - (3,000)
Issue of new shares BATHIRD 89,000 = = 89,000
Cost of issuing new shares BATHAR AR (6,315) - - (6,315)
At 30 June 2013 7201356 A30H 129,685 47,196 (12,735) 164,146

Special reserve represented the capital contribution from Honour Grace which is

based on the total equity of Green Riches at the date of Reorganisation.

Events after reporting period

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group entered
into the following significant transactions:

()

(ii)

On 6 August 2013, the Company completed placing of
70,000,000 new shares issued by the Company to not less
than six places at the places price of HK$0.9 per placing
share. The gross proceeds and net proceeds from the
placing are approximately HK$63 million and HK$61.3
million respectively.

On 13 August 2013, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an acquisition agreement (the
" Acquisition Agreement”) with an independent third party
to acquire 40% of the entire issued share capital in Jade
Dynasty Holdings Limited (“JDH") for an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$60 million (the “Acquisition”). JDH
and its subsidiaries (“JDH Group”) is principally engaged in
comic publication and owns the intellectual property rights
of a database of comic stories and comic heroes that are
suitable for reproduction as movies, television shows as
well as for the development into the online games and
mobile games.
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35. Events after reporting period (continued)

(ii)

(continued)

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, a call option was
granted to the Group which entitled the Group to acquire
an additional 20% of more of the entire issued share
capital in JDH during the period commencing on the date
of completion of the Acquisition and ending on its first
anniversary, at a consideration which is to be determined
based on the valuation of JDH Group at the date of the
call option exercised.

Details are set out in the Company’s announcement on 13
August 2013. Up to the date of this report, the Acquisition

is not yet completed.

36. Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company

The Company had the following subsidiaries as at 30 June 2013
and 2012:

Place of
incorporation/ Issue and fully

establishment/

paid share capital/

e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

35. BEHRREMH (F)

(if)

(&)
RIBUBHZ  AEEERZBENE G
REERBEE B EE — B ARMRE—

FURBEIDH 2 BB 21T AR AN ZE 20 % 3k LA
F o RERETERESES BLIDHER

ILEETE -

SEEHNARATN20135E8 5138 T A
i o BEAHE A - WESEEARTTK ©

36. AAQTFHELAIFIE

M2013%2012966 A30H ' AABHAE FFIKEBR

Al

Attributable equity

interest held by

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
E2BITR
FMEL BRBRAE
)N R RSB FmEA AARBENELRE IEXK
2013 2012
2013 20124
Green Riches (Note i) BVI Ordinary share US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
238 (M) EYahegids TERIET 100% 100% REZER
Pegasus Motion Pictures Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$ 1 100% 100% Film production
Production Limited
SEXRERRA e ERBOER T 100% 100% BRBUE
Pegasus Motion Pictures Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 100% 100% Film distribution
(Hong Kong) Limited
AEEFXHm (FF) s TEBOEET 100% 100% BYRITH®
BRAF]
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36. Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company 36.

118

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/

Issue and fully
paid share capital/

KA B RFE (&)

Attributable equity
interest held by

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
2RITR
R io v BrRBRAE
BB A R BB B/ S SEMER AARBFENEERE IEXK
2013 2012
20135 20124
Pegasus Motion Pictures BVI Ordinary share US$1 100% 100% Film distribution
Distribution Limited
FEXETARA RBREZES  EBRIET 100% 100% B ETHM
It K5 (Note ii) The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Service provider of the
HK$1,000,000 Group for facilitating
the establishment and
expansion of the
Group's business in
the PRC
IERRE (M) HE EaliiE=w 100% 100% TERSL R ERAEE
#5#51,000,00070 NESIETE ks SE]
ARAG R
Star Pictures Entertainment BVI Ordinary share US$1 100% 100% Representing the Group
Limited in entering into actors’
and film directors’
contracts
ERIREAR AT RERZES  EBRIET 100% 100% RERAEEFTDEE K
BREEEH
Star Pictures Entertainment Hong Kong Ordinary share 100% 100% Representing the Group
(Hong Kong) Limited HK$10,000 in entering into actors’
and production crew’s
contracts
EWIRE (B8) ARAR &R LA B 10,0007T 100% 100% REAEETDRERE R
SUEHEAR
PMPIL (Note iii) Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 100% - Film investment
BELRE (M) B TRREE T 100% - BAARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

(i) Except Green Riches, all other subsidiaries are indirectly owned by the
Company.

(ii) It is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

(iii) The subsidiary was acquired on 16 January 2013. Details are set out in
note 32.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

36.

ARe WIS

For the year ended 30 June 2013 #E2013F6A30RIEFE

RATME QRS (8)

B

G

(i) BRERASN - PIAEAMMIB AR AE R EERE
BHA -

(i) ZARRPAH BRI B E R

(iii) ZMBARMN201351 A16BES - #1575
RHIFE32 ©

RERLFAEFMER - SHER R EEFAARE
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Financial Summary

7&%"‘_ oh
B 151 2
Financial results P e
For the year ended 30 June
HE6H30HILEE
2010 2011 2012 2013
20104 20114F 20124F 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PR T PSR IT BETT BET T
Revenue s 34,031 71,191 137,186 192,645
Profit before tax R 5 A VA 3,109 21,033 26,506 23,628
Income tax expense FriSBifx (559) (3,460) (5,525) (4,484)
Profit and total comprehensive RAEIHER AELEFERET K&
income for the year attributable to EHEWELREE
owners of the Company 2,550 17,573 20,981 19,144
Assets and liabilities EEREE
At 30 June
M6H30H
2010 2011 2012 2013
20104 20114F 20124 2013%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT BT T
Total assets EEBE 78,806 130,372 193,487 221,761
Total liabilities SRERGEE (76,279) (110,262) (152,396) (27,841)
Equity attributable to owners of PA/NCIEZ PN
the Company FE(h R 2,527 20,110 41,091 193,920
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